
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton, Chief Appraiser


Approval of the Tax Assessor's Office recommendation to deny the disposition of tax refunds.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have the right to request a Refund under O.C.G.A. 48-5-380. This request is given to the Tax Assessors' Office in order to be 


reviewed in detail and the appropriate recommendation(s) are then forwarded to the Board of Commissioner's for their final approval of 


said requests. 


 


Requests for tax refunds from Carol Ann Beliveau are recommended for DENIAL.  The taxpayer contacted the Tax Assesor's Department 


to advise she felt there was a discrepancy in the records since she believed the records did not reflect the correct square footage based 


on a recent appraisal for refinance.  The property valuation has been based on the original appraiser's field inspection since the property 


was built in 1983.  Assessment Notices have been generated for this property each year there has been an increase in value, and 


subsequently, every years since 2011, regardless of value change.  The taxpayer never filed a Return of Value nor appealed the value 


based on "incorrect" data.  This was not deemed to be a factual/clerical error by the Board of Assessors. 


 


Appraisal staff was allowed inside the property to physically measure upstairs and the square footage has been adjusted for 2015 and 


forward.


Approval of the Tax Assessor's Office recommendation to deny the disposition of tax refunds.


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had previously been erroneously assessed and taxes have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


Yes Periodically through the year(s)


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


No


ConsentThursday, May 28, 2015



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #9







Refund Requests BOC 5/28/2015
Owner/Parcel Year(s) Property Basis for Request Recommendation Reason Amount Per Year


Beliveau, Carol Ann


  07-1726-007


2012


2013


2014


Residential


Taxpayer advised we did not 


have the correct square footage 


based on a recent appraisal for 


refinance.  Appraisal staff was 


allowed inside the property to 


physically measure upstairs and 


the square footage has been 


adjusted for 2015 and forward.  


Deny


The Taxpayer contacted our office to advise 


she felt there was a discrepancy in our 


records. The property valuation has been 


based on the original appraiser’s field 


inspection since the property was built in 


1983. Assessment Notices have been 


generated for this property each year there 


has been an increase in value, and 


subsequently, every year since 2011, 


regardless of value change. Taxpayer never 


filed a Return of Value nor appealed the 


value based on “incorrect” data. As this was 


not deemed to be a factual/clerical error by 


the Board of Assessors, the adjustment will 


apply to 2015 and forward.


2012 - $244.14


2013 - $239.54


2014 - $274.24


Total Number Requested 3 


Total Amount Requested $757.92


Total Number Approved 0


Total Amount Recommended for Approval
$0.00












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Water System Lee Pope, Director


Consideration of staff's recommendation to authorize Task Order Proposal FC018 with CH2M Hill for improvements at the Crosstown 


Water Treatment Plant, in the amount of $442,103.00, and authorization for the County Administrator to sign all related documents.


A requirement for proper treatment, storage, and distribution of water is the ongoing use of professional engineering services.  To go 


through a Request for Proposals (RFP) process each time engineering services are needed would be cumbersome, and would delay 


work that impacts water quality of service.  It is therefore customary for local governments to contract with a firm to serve as the "on-call 


engineer" or Engineer of Record. 


 


Through RFP #888, Fayette County chose CH2M Hill on June 30, 2014 to serve as Engineer of Record.  The original contract was made 


effective for twelve (12) months, with provisions for two 12-month extensions.  Through this contract, Task Orders are issued as needed 


for engineering services on various projects. 


 


The Georgia Environmental Protection Division recently conducted a sanitary survey of the Crosstown Water Treatment Facility.  It noted 


the need to (1) rehabilitate the granular media filters, (2) replace the chlorine dioxide generation system, and (3) add a new powdered 


activation carbon storage and feed system.  Task Order FC018 is proposed to authorize CH2M Hill to provide bid phase, permitting, and 


construction management services for these tasks. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to authorize Task Order Proposal FC018 with CH2M Hill for improvements at the Crosstown Water 


Treatment Plant, in the amount of $442,103.00, and authorization for the County Administrator to sign all related documents.


Funds are available in the Water System bonds.  


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Thursday, May 28, 2015 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #15







 
 
To: 
 
From: 
 
Date: 
 
Subject
 
A  requ
profess
engine
quality 
the “on
 
Throug
original
Throug
 
The Ge
Water 
replace
storage
permitt
 
Admini
 


 


  Stev


  Ted 


  Sep


:  Con


irement  for 
ional engine
ering  service
or service.  I
‐call enginee


h RFP #888, 
  contract w
h this contra


orgia Enviro
Treatment  F
the  chlorin


e and feed sy
ting, and con


strative detai


Contract Nu
Task Order: 
Crosstown 
Task Order N
Budget: 


Fun
Ava


ve Rapson 


L. Burgess 


tember 17, 20


tract #888; Ta


proper  trea
ering  service
s are needed
t is therefore
r” or Enginee


the county ch
as made  effe
ct, Task Order


nmental Prote
acility.    They
e  dioxide  ge
stem.  Task O
struction man


ls of the prop


mber and Na
FC018, Bid p


Water Treatm
Not‐to‐Excee


ding Source: 
ilable Balance


013 


ask Order FC0


tment,  stora
s.    To  go  thr
d would be  cu
e customary f
er of Record.


hose CH2M H
ctive  for  12 
rs are issued 


ection Divisio
y  noted  the 
eneration  sys
Order FC018 i
nagement ser


posed Task Or


ame: 888, Wa
hase, permit


ment Plant 
d Amount: $4


Water System
e: $6,933,133


018 – Water 


age,  and  dis
rough  a Requ
umbersome, 
for local gov


ill on June 3
months, with
as needed fo


n recently co
need  to  (1) 
stem,  and  (3
s proposed t
rvices for the


rder are as f


ater System E
ting, and con


442,103 


m bonds 
3 as of 5/20/


System Engi


tribution  of 
uest  for Pro
and would d


ernments to 


0, 2014 to ser
h provisions 
r engineerin


onducted a s
rehabilitate 
)  add  a  ne
o authorize C
se tasks. 


ollows: 


Engineer of R
struction ma


2015 


neer of Record


water  is  the
posals  (RFP) p
delay work  t
contract with


rve as Engine
for  two  12‐m
g services on 


anitary survey
the  granular
w  powdered 
CH2M Hill to 


ecord 
nagement fo


d 


e  ongoing  u
process each
hat  impacts w
 a firm to ser


eer of Record
month  exten
various proje


y of the Cross
r media  filter
activation  ca
provide bid p


r improveme


 


use  of 
h  time 
water 
rve as 


.  The 
sions.  
ects. 


stown 
rs,  (2) 
arbon 
phase, 


nts at 







CH2M HILL  
6600 Peachtree Dunwoody Road  
Embassy Row 400, Suite 600 
Atlanta, GA 30328 
Tel (770) 604-9095 


 
 
 
March 27, 2015 


 
Mr. Lee Pope 
Director 
Fayette County Water System 
245 McDonough Road 
Fayetteville, Georgia 30215 
(770) 320-6016 
lpope@fayettecountyga.gov 


Subject: Task Order Proposal FC018 
Crosstown Water Treatment Plant Improvements:  
Bid Phase, Permitting and Construction Management Services 


 


Mr. Pope: 


Attached is the task order proposal to provide bid phase, permitting, and construction management 
professional services in support of Fayette County Water Department’s improvements to the Crosstown 
Water Treatment Plant as designed under the FC012 Crosstown WTP Improvements design task order.  


Please review these items and let me know if you have any questions or comments. Upon your review and 
approval, please sign and return the proposal. 


 


Respectfully, 
 
CH2M HILL 


 
Alan Bowling, PE  
Client Service Manager 
 


cc: 
 


Michael Diaz, PE Senior Project Engineer  


 


  


COPYRIGHT 2015 BY CH2M H LL, INC. • COMPANY CONFIDENTIAL 







CROSSTOWN WATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS:  
BID PHASE, PERMITTING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
TASK ORDER PROPOSAL 
PAGE 2 OF 6 
MARCH 27, 2015 
 


Background 
The Crosstown Water Treatment Plant (WTP) was originally constructed in 1985, with a subsequent 
expansion occurring in 1991. The Crosstown WTP has a permitted treatment capacity of 13.5 million gallons 
per day (mgd) and is owned and operated by the Fayette County Water System (FCWS). The plant is a 
conventional water treatment facility equipped with sludge thickening. The major treatment processes 
include rapid mixing, flocculation, sedimentation, filtration, fluoridation, chemical corrosion control, and 
disinfection.  In response to a recent sanitary survey conducted by the Georgia Environmental Protection 
Division (GA EPD), CH2M HILL worked with the FCWS to develop a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to address 
deficiencies noted during the sanitary survey. Significant areas noted for immediate improvement in the CIP 
for the Crosstown WTP were the rehabilitation of the granular media filters, the replacement of the chlorine 
dioxide generation system, and the addition of a new powdered activation carbon storage and feed system.  


This task order proposal will allow CH2M HILL to perform bid phase, permitting, and construction 
management services for the implementation of the Crosstown WTP Improvements.  


Scope of Services 
As part of the completion of this project, CH2M HILL will perform the following tasks: 


Task 1 – Permitting and Bid Phase Services 
Task 1.1 Permitting 
CH2M HILL will prepare and submit permit applications to the following: 


• GA EPD for a water treatment process modification and a general water plant construction permit.  
• Fayette County Land Disturbance Permit. 
• Fayette County Building Permit. 


 
The services to be provided as part of the permitting effort will include one meeting to describe the project 
requirements, identify and resolve areas of concerns, and obtain concurrence with the path forward. A 
permitting package, including a cover letter and the bid documents, will be submitted to the GA EPD and 
Fayette County Permitting for review and approval.  


Task 1.1 Bid Phase Services 
CH2M HILL will provide electronic bid documents to Fayette Count Purchasing Department for website 
posting to prospective bidders, Subcontractors, and equipment suppliers for this project. CH2M HILL will 
receive and respond to bidders’ questions during the bid period and prepare and distribute addenda to all 
plan holders. As part of the delivery of the bid phase services, CH2M HILL will perform the following tasks: 


• Attend one pre-bid conference and prepare and distribute agenda of the pre-bid conference to all 
plan holders. 


• Receive and respond to Contractor questions and prepare addenda as required. Assist FCWS in the 
evaluation of all bids. A recommendation of award for the construction contract will be prepared 
detailing all, bidders, bid amounts, and the engineering estimate. 


• Final Contract Documents for execution will be conformed to include addenda issued during bidding.  
CH2M HILL will assist in the distribution of Contract Documents to FCWS and the Contractor for 
signature. 


• Assist Fayette County Purchasing Department with advertising as necessary.    
• Deliver to the FCWS executed, conformed Contract Documents with original signatures and one set 


of unbound conformed Contract Documents incorporating all addenda, contractor bonds, and the 


COPYRIGHT 2015 BY CH2M H LL, INC. • COMPANY CONFIDENTIAL 







CROSSTOWN WATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS:  
BID PHASE, PERMITTING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
TASK ORDER PROPOSAL 
PAGE 3 OF 6 
MARCH 27, 2015 
 


completed proposal contract for the Contractor to use to reproduce sections of the design 
documents.   


Task 1 Deliverables: 
• Permitting package, including a cover letter and bid documents 
• Electronic (PDF) addenda to Fayette Count Purchasing Department for website posting as required 
• Pre-bid conference agenda and attendee list 
• Recommendation letter of award for construction contract 
• Electronic (PDF)  of final front end Contract Documents for execution will be conformed to include 


addenda and the completed proposal contract, and bonds to Fayette Count Purchasing Department 
for the Contractor. 


• Four full size, one half size, three Specifications, and one electronic (PDF) of Conformed Documents 
to the Contractor to make copies necessary for construction. 


• Three full size, four half size, three Specifications, and one electronic PDF to FCWS. 


Task 2 – Construction Management Services 
During the construction phase of the Crosstown WTP Improvements project, CH2M HILL will provide 
engineering support and proportional construction management services. The following tasks identify the 
specifics of the support that will be provided. 


Task 2.1 – Resident Inspection Services 
CH2M HILL will perform limited on-site resident inspection services during construction. The level of effort 
associated with the on-site resident inspection services is not full-time and based upon the needs during the 
various stages of construction and is required at specific phases before accepting the Contractor’s work.  


The estimated Resident Inspection services level of effort over the course of the construction will vary based 
on the phases of construction activities throughout this period.   Our inspection services are focused on 
when significant construction activities will be taking place and will be coordinated with the County after the 
Contractors proposed construction schedule is received.   The level of effort included in this proposal is an 
average of 16 hours per week for the 52 week construction duration.     


CH2M HILL will coordinate any changes to the anticipated resident inspection level of effort, either positive 
or negative, with the FCWS Director.  If additional on-site resident inspection services are required, they will 
be provided under an additional scope of services. 


Task 2.2 – Construction Engineering Services 
In addition to providing on-site resident inspection to observe the overall construction progress made by the 
Contractor, CH2M HILL will also provide engineering office support services and proportional construction 
management for the project. The work and level of effort associated with this task is as follows: 


Requests for Information (RFIs) and Submittal Review 


CH2M HILL will review and respond in writing to RFIs, shop drawings, and construction related submittals 
generated by the General Contractor over the course of the construction period. CH2M HILL will assist in the 
technical interpretation of the drawings, specifications, and Contract Documents, and evaluate requested 
deviations from the approved design and specifications. The review of RFIs and submittals and shop 
drawings are included in this scope of work, up to 140 submittals and 30 RFIs. 


Review and Issue Field Changes and Change Orders 
CH2M HILL will assist the General Contractor with field changes and change orders that result from potential 
issues that arise as construction progresses. Assistance will include coordination with the General Contractor 


COPYRIGHT 2015 BY CH2M H LL, INC. • COMPANY CONFIDENTIAL 







CROSSTOWN WATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS:  
BID PHASE, PERMITTING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
TASK ORDER PROPOSAL 
PAGE 4 OF 6 
MARCH 27, 2015 
 
to obtain pricing information for field changes and change orders. If the required field change results in a 
modification to the construction price, the General Contractor will submit a proposal for CH2M HILL to 
prepare a potential change order form and document the proposed work and pricing to be distributed and 
signed by CH2M HILL, FCWS, and the General Contractor at the time of the change. CH2M HILL will provide 
signed documentation of the change order at the end of the construction project. An estimated ten field 
orders (including change orders) are included in this scope of work.  


Site Visits and Construction Progress Meetings  
CH2M HILL will host and participate in monthly construction progress meetings during the duration of the 
construction project to receive the General Contractor’s report on the progress of construction, anticipated 
problems, and review the schedule of planned work. During these monthly meetings, CH2M HILL’s design 
discipline engineers can be made available to attend to observe construction progress and assist in resolving 
any outstanding field issues with the Contractor.  If issues arise prior to these scheduled monthly 
construction progress meetings, CH2M HILL’s design discipline engineers will visit the site to coordinate on 
specific issues with the Contractor that cannot wait for the scheduled meeting.   


A total of twelve monthly progress meetings are assumed for the scope of work. In addition, it is estimated 
that CH2M HILL’s design discipline engineers will conduct thirty site visits over the estimated twelve month 
construction period. Site visits are assumed to be a full day (8 hours). As part of these site visits, CH2M HILL 
will also support and coordinate with the Contractor on the start-up services and training for the new 
equipment being installed as part of the project.  


CH2M HILL will host two additional meetings during construction – a pre-construction kickoff conference 
and final construction review meeting. CH2M HILL will prepare meeting meetings to document the items 
discussed at each of the monthly construction progress meetings, as well as the pre-construction kickoff 
conference and the final construction review meeting.  


Record Drawings 
CH2M HILL will produce one set of record drawings at the end of the construction phase. CH2M HILL will 
utilize mark-ups from the General Contractor to modify the conformed drawings to generate the record 
drawings. CH2M HILL will monitor the General Contractor’s progress on maintaining the record drawings 
monthly as part of the construction progress meetings.    


Task 2 Assumptions: 
• The construction duration for the project is assumed to be 12 months with construction beginning in 


late summer 2015.  
• CH2M HILL shall not supervise, direct, or have control over the Contractor’s work nor have any 


responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures selected 
by the Contractor, nor for the Contractor’s safety precautions or programs in connection with the 
work.  


• CH2M HILL does not guarantee the performance of the Contractor and shall not be responsible for 
the Contractor’s failure to perform its work in accordance with the Contract Documents or any 
applicable laws, codes, rules, or regulations.  


• Warranty period assistance is not included in the scope of work. Assistance, including periodic 
monitoring, responding to operational issues, communications with the Contractor for performance 
of warranty work, and observation of warranty work where appropriate can be provided as an 
additional service.  


Task 2 Deliverables: 
• Record drawings 
• Complete set of submittals and shop drawings 


COPYRIGHT 2015 BY CH2M H LL, INC. • COMPANY CONFIDENTIAL 







CROSSTOWN WATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS:  
BID PHASE, PERMITTING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
TASK ORDER PROPOSAL 
PAGE 5 OF 6 
MARCH 27, 2015 
 


• Construction progress meeting minutes 
• Construction photos 


Level of Effort 
The level of effort summarized in the following table reflects CH2M HILL’s proposed team for this project.  
 


Labor Category Est. Hours 


Principal Program Manager 41 


Principal Technologist 1088 


Senior Technologist (Resident Inspector) 959 


Project Technologist 400 


Associate Engineer 409 


Designer 5 396 


Designer 4 36 


Office Support 48 


Task Order Total Budgeted Hours 3,377 


Schedule 
The CH2M HILL team will begin work under this Professional Services Assignment when authorized by FCWS. 
The scope of services is based on the following durations after receipt of a Notice to Proceed from FCWS: 


• Permitting and Bidding Services – 3 months 


• Construction Services and Record Drawings – 13 months  
(12 months of construction and 1 month for record drawings) 


Compensation 
The level of effort for this scope is based upon the timelines included in the schedule above. Compensation 
for the work in this task order will be based upon a time and materials basis, not to exceed, of $442,103.00.  


The compensation is based upon the previously agreed upon rates associated with CH2M HILL’s Engineer of 
Records contract with FCWS and the following summary by task: 
 


Task Hours Labor Expenses Total 
TASK 1: Permitting & Bid Phase 342 $38,631 $435 $39,066 
TASK 2: Construction Management 3035 $392,730 $10,307 $403,037 


Project Total 3,377   $442,103 


 
  


COPYRIGHT 2015 BY CH2M H LL, INC. • COMPANY CONFIDENTIAL 







CROSSTOWN WATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS:  
BID PHASE, PERMITTING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
TASK ORDER PROPOSAL 
PAGE 6 OF 6 
MARCH 27, 2015 
 
ENGINEER Project Manager will track and communicate with County any changes in scope or budget on a 
monthly basis as a part of the project’s monthly status report.  
 


Reviewed by: 
Fayette County 
Date:_______________________________ 
 


____________________________________  
Lee Pope 
Water System Director 


 
Approved by:   


Fayette County  CH2M HILL  


Date: _______________________________  Date: March 27, 2015 


   


____________________________________  
Steve Rapson 
County Administrator 


 ________________________________  
Steve Lavinder, PE  
Vice-President 


 


COPYRIGHT 2015 BY CH2M H LL, INC. • COMPANY CONFIDENTIAL 












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Water System Lee Pope, Director


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to approve the Radio Control Sailboat Regatta at Lake McIntosh, from September 


12 to September 13, to waive parking fees for participants, to name this year's regatta the "Second Annual Sailboat Event."


In 2014, Mr. David Linville contacted the Fayette County Water System about a sail boat race on Lake McIntosh and asking if the parking 


fee for out-of-county guests could be waived for the event.  The matter was turned over to the Fayette County Marshals Department who 


informed Mr. Linville that there was no problem with holding the event but that the Water Committee would have to decide if parking fees 


could be waived.  The Water Committee subsequently met and recommended to the Board of Commissioners to waive the parking fees 


at Lake McIntosh Park for the participants in the sailboat regatta. On March 24, 2014, the Board of Commissioners unanimously agreed 


to waive parking fees for out-of-county participants of the Sailboat Regatta, however, the parking fees would not be waived for out-of-


county spectators to the event. 


 


Mr. Linville returned to the Water Committee in 2015 and made the same request.  Mr. Linville is also asking that the radio control 


sailboat regatta be made into an annual event.  The Water Committee has recommended approval of this request.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to approve the Radio Control Sailboat Regatta at Lake McIntosh, from September 


12 to September 13, to waive parking fees for participants, to name this year's regatta the "Second Annual Sailboat Event." 


Not Applicable.


Yes Tuesday, March 11, 2014


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, May 28, 2015 Consent



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #11












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Water System Lee Pope, Director


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with Centennial Contractors Enterprises, Inc., in the amount of $14,368.00 


from renewal and extension funds, to replace the existing wooden deck at Starr's Mill, and authorization for the County Administrator sign 


the contract and any related documents.


The wooden deck at Starr's Mill is in need of repair.  The repair will include demolishing the Starr's Mill's existing wooden deck and 


installing a new wood deck in its place. 


 


This agreement, often referred to as a "job order contract," was developed through the Gordian Group (national contract through the 


National Joint Powers Alliance) with Centennial Contractors Enterprises, Inc. (state-contract). 


 


"Exhibit A" provides the Scope of Work that will be performed for the repair at Starr's Mill. 


 


"Exhibit B" provides the Work Order Signature Document. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with Centennial Contractors Enterprises, Inc., in the amount of $14,368.00 


from renewal and extension funds, to replace the existing wooden deck at Starr's Mill, and authorization for the County Administrator sign 


the contract and any related documents.


Funds are available in the Water System Renewal and Extension Fund.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Centennial Contractors Enterprises, Inc. recently worked at the Fayette Senior Center by pressure-washing and painting the facility.


Thursday, May 14, 2015 Consent



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #10







 


 


Historic Fayette County  


Starr’s Mill Deck Rebuild  
CCE NO.:  72440-0396 


EZIQC NO.:  029407.00 


 


115 Waterfall Way  


Fayetteville GA 30215 


 


SCOPE OF WORK 
 


March 17, 2015 


 


Summary Scope 


The scope of work is to demolish the existing wood deck to the Starr’s Mill and install a 


new wood deck in its place.  New deck shall be similar in size.  


 


Drawings and Specifications:  


Deck A-1 Dated 3/16/15 


 


Detailed Scope 


 


CARPENTRY 


1. Furnish all labor materials and equipment to perform the following: 


a. Demolish the existing wood deck to include the following: 


i. Wood trusses, beams, posts, treads 


ii. Concrete footers as necessary to install new posts 


b. Existing deck overhang to remain.  Provide all necessary supports and jacks 


necessary to support deck overhang during demolition and rebuild.  Existing 


deck overhang posts are to be reused.  


c. Install new 27’ x 9’ pressure treated wood deck with 2ea wood stair entrances 


to replace existing deck like in kind and built to local building code. 


i. Ledger– 2” x 10” attached to existing structure with ½” corrosion resistant 


lag bolts 16” OC.  Metal flashing between existing structure and 


ledger.  Remove and reinstall existing exterior sheathing as necessary 


to attach ledger to structural framing members.  Install blocking as 


necessary 


ii. Rim board – 2” x 10” Attach L/LS angle connectors in corner connections  


iii. Trusses – 2” x 8” at 16” OC.  Attach all joist  to rim board and beam with 


joist hangers 


iv. Beam – 2” x 10” Attach all beams  to ledger and rim board with joist 


hangers 


v. Support Post – 6” x 6” Installed in concrete footer 1’ deep 


vi. Deck boards - 1” x 6” 


vii. Railing – 3’ tall around perimeter of deck and along both sides of stairs 


a. 2” x 4” top rail   







 


 


b. 2” x 4” bottom rail   


c. 2” x 2” Pickets 4” OC 


d. 4” x 4” Railing post, bolt connection 


viii. Stairs 


e. 2” x 12” Stair treads 7ea steps per stair set 


f. 2” x 12” Stair stringer.  Connect stringers to rim board with stair-


stringer connectors   


ix. Blocking – 2” x 8” 


d. Reconnect existing deck overhang to new deck 


e. Concrete   


i. Post Footer – 36” dia. x 3’deep  


ii. Landing Pad – 3’ x 7’ x 4” deep 


iii. Compact existing subgrade below footer and landing pad 


iv. Move and rearrange existing rocks as necessary to access ground 


f. Paint the following items after wood has dried and is ready for paint: 


i. New vertical post and pickets 


ii. Exterior side of new rim board and stringer  


iii. Top of new deck boards and stair treads 


iv. Existing post.  Provide surface prep as necessary.   


Submittals 


1. Shoring Plan 


2. Activity Hazard analysis 


3. Paint 


 


Details that Apply to All Work Areas: 


1. Contractor shall utilize the latest issue of the NJPA Specifications, and perform 


all work to the latest building codes. 


2. Maintain clean work areas at all times. Remove and dispose of all demolished 


materials and construction debris. Site must be cleaned every day at the 


completion of work. Contractor shall take extra precautions to pick up all debris, 


nails and fasteners from the ground and all surrounding area, and finishing with 


magnetic pickup to insure safety and cleanliness. 


3. All measurements and quantities supplied in this scope of work are approximate 


in nature and are supplied as a convenience for the contractor. The contractor is 


responsible for field verification of all measurements and quantities. 


4. Contractor shall verify all new and existing conditions and dimensions at job site 


prior to the start of construction and during construction. 


5. The Contractor shall perform all work, make all deliveries and have access to 


work areas between 8:00AM and 5:00 P.M. Monday through Friday.  Upon 


written permission of the Owner, contractor may make deliveries and have access 


to work areas at any hour of any day, but shall bear without any contribution from 


the Owner, any extra expense and responsibility for doing so, including, without 


limitation, its own overtime expense. Contractor shall coordinate inspections as 


required. Contractor shall provide a detailed schedule to submit with this proposal 


package. 







 


 


6. Contractor shall coordinate all parking with Fayette County prior to beginning 


work. 


7. Contractor shall obtain approvals in advance for all lay down and storage areas. 


8. All salvageable materials remain the property of the Fayette County unless 


otherwise agreed. 


9. Contractor shall coordinate inspections as required. 


10. The Contractor shall keep at the site one copy of all drawings and specifications 


in good order with all addenda and change orders noted thereon and available to 


the owner and to his representative(s). 


11. Contractor is responsible for protection of all surfaces including those not in the 


scope of work from construction dust, debris or damage during construction 


through final acceptance. The methods of protection including plastic, paper, 


sealing doors or windows, etc. 


12. Final clean up and disposal: Remove debris, rubbish, and waste material from the 


property. Upon completion of work, all construction areas shall be left clean and 


free from debris. Clean all dust, dirt, stains, hand marks, and other blemishes.  


13. Closeout: 


a. Clean entire work area. 


b. Meet all close‐out submittal requirements as identified in the contract 


documents. 


c. Promptly remove from site all tools, equipment and excess materials 


 


Clarifications and Exclusions: 


1. Centennial specifically excludes any work not stated in the above scope of work.  


No additional work shall be performed without written permission by Fayette 


County and an official approved Change Order. 


2. Centennial excludes all hazardous material abatement. (Asbestos, lead, mold, etc.)  


3. Centennial assumes that there will be noise during construction. 


4. Centennial excludes building new deck to ADA requirements and codes.  


Wheelchair access ramps are excluded.  


 


Fayette County Responsibilities 


1. Fayette County shall provide access to the worksite during specified working 


hours.  


2. Provide staging area for equipment and materials delivered to site. 


3. Supply prompt approval/comments on any submittals or RFI's submitted by 


the Contractor to Fayette County. 


 


Permitting: 


At the time of issuance of a Purchase Order for this Work, it is understood that a 


commercial permit is required for this Work.  The Contractor will be responsible for 


obtaining applicable permit and the Fayette County will be responsible for compensating 


the Contractor for permit fees and any design necessary to obtain such permits or related 


approvals as described in the EZIQC master contract documents (i.e. permit fees are 


dollar for dollar reimbursable and professional design and engineering fees are paid for at 


hourly rates published in the Construction Task Catalog). 







 


 


 


Project Schedule: 


1. Contractor to propose a detailed construction schedule and submit with 


proposal package. 


2. The work shall be completed within 60 working days from date of the Purchase 


Order issuance. Please note that dry time of pressure treated wood can vary and 


may not be ready to receive paint with in the above mentioned working days. 


 


Contract Document Order of Precedence: 


Contract documents shall govern in the order first listed below: 


1.  This Detailed Scope of Work 


2.  EZIQC master contract documents 







Work Order Signature Document


 


NJPA EZIQC Contract No.:  GA03-062911-CCE


FC Stars Mill House Porch Repair


New Work Order


029407.00


Modify an Existing Work Order


Work Order Title: 


Work Order Number: Work Order Date:


X


04/09/2015


Contractor Name:


Contact:


Phone:


Contact:


Phone:


Colby Adams


(770) 613-2999


Owner Name:


Steve  Rhoads


7703206001


Centennial Contractors Enterprises, Inc.Fayette County


Work to be Performed


Work to be performed as per the Final Detailed Scope of Work Attached and as per the terms and conditions of NJPA 


EZIQC Contract No GA03-062911-CCE. 


Brief Work Order Description:


Repair wooden Porch


Time of Performance See Schedule Section of the Detailed Scope of Work


Will not apply:Will apply:Liquidated Damages X


Work Order Firm Fixed Price: $14,367.99


Owner Purchase Order Number:  


Approvals


Date DateContractorOwner


 


Page 1 of 1


4/9/2015


Work Order Signature Document


ezIQC - NJPA - GA







 


Detailed Scope of Work


 


To: From: Steve  Rhoads


Fayette County


140 Stonewall Avenue West                                                                                                                             


Fayetteville, GA 30214


Colby Adams


Centennial Contractors Enterprises, Inc.


3200 Cobb Galleria Parkway,Suite 210                                                                                                                  


Atlanta, GA 30339


(770) 613-2999 7703206001


Work Order Number:


April 09, 2015Date Printed: 


029407.00


FC Stars Mill House Porch RepairWork Order Title:


Brief Scope: Repair wooden Porch


Revised FinalPreliminary X


The following items detail the scope of work as discussed at the site. All requirements necessary to accomplish the items 


set forth below shall be considered part of this scope of work.


See attach Scope of Work


Contractor Date


DateOwner


Page 1 of 1


4/9/2015


Scope of Work


ezIQC - NJPA - GA







 


Contractor's Price Proposal - Summary


Owner PO #:


FC Stars Mill House Porch Repair


029407.00


GA03-062911-CCEIQC Master Contract #:


Work Order Number:


Work Order Title:


April 09, 2015Date:


Centennial Contractors Enterprises, Inc.Contractor: 


Proposal Name:


$14,367.99


FC Starrs Mill House Deck Repair


Proposal Value:


$3,302.8701 - General Requirements


$90.2002 - Site Work


$6,192.2806 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites


$367.3907 - Thermal & Moisture Protection


$2,590.6509 - Finishes


$170.3531 - Earthwork


$1,654.2532 - Exterior Improvements


This total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 


sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding.


$14,367.99Proposal Total


Page 1 of 1


4/9/2015


Contractor's Price Proposal - Summary


ezIQC - NJPA - GA







 


Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail


FC Stars Mill House Porch Repair


029407.00


GA03-062911-CCEIQC Master Contract #:


Work Order Number:


Owner PO #:


Work Order Title:


April 09, 2015Date:


Contractor: Centennial Contractors Enterprises, Inc.


Proposal Name:


$14,367.99


FC Starrs Mill House Deck Repair


Proposal Value:


Labor


Sect. Item Modifer UOM Description Line Total


MaterialEquip. (Excluded if marked with an X)


01 - General Requirements


01  22   20   00 0006 CarpenterNote: Tasks in the CTC include appropriate costs to cover labor. 


These tasks will be requested specifically by the owner for miscellaneous 


work not covered in the CTC.


1 $146.11HR


Installation =x x  146.11
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 36.02  1.0141 4.00


USED FOR LABOR TO MOVE LARGE BOULDER TO DEMO AND INSTALL DECK POST - 2 MEN FOR 2 HOURS


01  22   23   00 0552 5 KW, 11 HP Gas Powered Generator Set2 $294.66WK


Installation =x x  294.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 145.28  1.0141 2.00


GENERATOR


01  22   23   00 0637 Fuel Reimbursement For GeneratorsNote: Purchases made by the contractor 


for fuel will be reimbursed to the Contractor at the actual cost of the 


purchase, without mark-up, for which a receipt or bill is received.  The 


Adjustment Factor applied to Reimbursable Fees will be 1.0000.  The base 


cost of the purchase is $1.00, quantity will adjust cost to actual purchase 


cost, i.e.; quantity of 125 = $125 00 purchase. If there are multiple purchases, 


each one shall be listed separately with a comment in the "note" block to 


identify the purchase.


3 $71.89EA


Installation =x x  71.89
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 1.00  1.0650 67.50


GENERATOR FUEL - 6 GALLON TANK REFILLED EVERY OTHER DAY FOR 2 WEEKS AT $2.25 PER GALLON


01  22   23   00 0689 10 To 20 Ton Manual Screw Jack4 $317.94WK


Installation =x x  317.94
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 39.19  1.0141 8.00


4EA MANUAL JACKS FOR 2 WEEKS  SUPPORT THE  OVERHANG


01  22   23   00 1070 6 CY Rear Dump Truck With Full-Time Truck Driver5 $1,700.10DAY


Installation =x x  1,700.10
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 558.82  1.0141 3.00


DUMP TRUCK FOR MATERIAL DISPOSAL


01  56   33   00 0004 Temporary Safety Fence, Plas ic Mesh, 48" High With Posts At 8' On Center6 $53.24LF


Installation =x x  53.24
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 1.05  1.0141 50.00


TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FENCE


01  71   23   16 0022 Survey Clear Area For Underground Utilities7 $466.36ACR


Installation =x x  466.36
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 1,839.49  1.0141 0.25


UTILITY LOCATE


Page 1 of 6


4/9/2015


Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail


ezIQC - NJPA - GA







Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail Continues..


Work Order Title:


Work Order Number: 029407.00


FC Stars Mill House Porch Repair


Proposal Name:


$14,367.99


FC Starrs Mill House Deck Repair


Proposal Value:


Labor


Sect. Item Modifer UOM Description Line Total


MaterialEquip. (Excluded if marked with an X)


01 - General Requirements


01  74   19   00 0021 Dump Fee, Traditional Materials, Building Construction Materials8 $146.64CY


Installation =x x  146.64
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 9.64  1.0141 15.00


DUMP FEE DECKING


01  74   19   00 0026 Dump Fee, Asphalt, Concrete, Gravel And Subgrade Material9 $19.94CY


Installation =x x  19.94
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 19.66  1.0141 1.00


DUMP FEE CONCRETE


01  74   19   00 0029 Hauling On Paved Roads, First 15 Miles10 $86.00CYM


Installation =x x  86.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 0.53  1.0141 160.00


HAULING DEBRIS - 16CY X 10 MILES = 160CYM


$3,302.87Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements


02 - Site Work


02  41   16   13 0034 Demo Concrete Footing For Fence, Gate, Playground Equipment Post, 


Etcetera. Includes Excavation


11 $90.20CF


Installation =x x  90.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 5.93  1.0141 15.00


DEMO POST CONCRETE


$90.20Subtotal for 02 - Site Work


06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites


06  05   23   00 0007 10 Gauge Framing Anchor12 $26.87EA


Installation =x x  26.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 2.65  1.0141 10.00


USED FOR CORNER CONNECTION FRAMING ANCHORS TO ATTACH LEDGER TO RIM BOARDS, RIM BOARD 


TO RIM BOARD, AND STAIR STRINGER TO RIM BOARD


06  05   23   00 0010 18 Gauge Joist Hanger, For 2"x6"-2"x10" Joist, Also Acceptable For Beam 


Hangers


13 $135.89EA


Installation =x x  115.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 2.84  1.0141 40.00


Demolition x x =  20.69 1.02  1.0141 20.00


2" X 8" JOIST HANGERS, 2" X 10" BEAM HANGER


06  05   23   00 0010 0112 For Quantities > 10 To 50, Deduct14 -$4.46MOD


Installation =x x -4.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


-0.11  1.0141 40.00


06  05   23   00 0036 1/2" x 6" Long, Carriage Bolt15 $225.74EA


Installation =x x  225.74
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 7.42  1.0141 30.00


1/2" CARRIAGE BOLTS FOR HAND RAIL POSTS


Page 2 of 6


4/9/2015


Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail


ezIQC - NJPA - GA







Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail Continues..


Work Order Title:


Work Order Number: 029407.00


FC Stars Mill House Porch Repair


Proposal Name:


$14,367.99


FC Starrs Mill House Deck Repair


Proposal Value:


Labor


Sect. Item Modifer UOM Description Line Total


MaterialEquip. (Excluded if marked with an X)


06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites


06  05   23   00 0036 0110 For Galvanized Bolts, Add16 $7.30MOD


Installation =x x  7.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 0.24  1.0141 30.00


06  05   23   00 0036 0112 For Quantities > 10 To 50, Deduct17 -$9.43MOD


Installation =x x -9.43
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


-0.31  1.0141 30.00


06  05   23   00 0082 1/2" x 10" Long, Hex Lag Bolt18 $383.69EA


Installation =x x  383.69
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 10.51  1.0141 36.00


1/2" LAG BOTS FOR ATTACHING LEDGER TO EXISTING STRUCTURE


06  05   23   00 0082 0110 For Galvanized Bolts, Add19 $18.98MOD


Installation =x x  18.98
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 0.52  1.0141 36.00


06  05   23   00 0082 0112 For Quantities > 10 To 50, Deduct20 -$14.60MOD


Installation =x x -14.60
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


-0.40  1.0141 36.00


06  11   16   00 0112 2"x4" (5cm x 10cm) Pressure Treated Blocking To Wood21 $158.96LF


Installation =x x  116.37
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 1.53  1.0141 75.00


Demolition x x =  42.59 0.56  1.0141 75.00


2" X 4" WOOD STUDS FOR TEMPORARY BRACING AND SUPPORTS


06  15   13   00 0007 2" x 6" Pressure Treated Decking, 2" x 8" Pressure Treated Joists 16" On 


Center, Wood Deck System


22 $4,095.61SF


Installation =x x  3,541.15
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 14.37  1.0141 243.00


Demolition x x =  554.46 2.25  1.0141 243.00


DECK SYSTEM INCLUDING DECK BOARDS, JOISTS, POST, RAILING AND PICKETS


06  15   13   00 0154 3' Wide, 2" x 6" Pressure Treated Decking With 2" x 12" Pressure Treated 


Joists, Wood Stair System


23 $753.17RSR


Installation =x x  674.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 47.52  1.0141 14.00


Demolition x x =  78.51 5.53  1.0141 14.00


USED FOR 6' WIDE STAIR SYSTEM INCLUDING TREADS, JOIST, POST, RAIL AND PICKETS


06  15   13   00 0162 4' Wide, 2" x 6" Pressure Treated Decking With 2" x 12" Pressure Treated 


Joists, Wood Stair System


24 $414.56RSR


Installation =x x  371.33
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 52.31  1.0141 7.00


Demolition x x =  43.23 6.09  1.0141 7.00


4' WIDE STAIR SYSTEM INCLUDING TREADS, JOIST, POST, RAIL AND PICKETS


$6,192.28Subtotal for 06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites


07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection


Page 3 of 6


4/9/2015


Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail


ezIQC - NJPA - GA







Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail Continues..


Work Order Title:


Work Order Number: 029407.00


FC Stars Mill House Porch Repair


Proposal Name:


$14,367.99


FC Starrs Mill House Deck Repair


Proposal Value:


Labor


Sect. Item Modifer UOM Description Line Total


MaterialEquip. (Excluded if marked with an X)


07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection


07  46   23   00 0006 6" To 8" (15cm x 20cm) Wide Spruce Lap Siding, #2 Or Better25 $166.96LF


Installation =x x  111.31
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


X  0.98  1.0141 112.00


Demolition x x =  55.65X  0.49  1.0141 112.00


USED TO REMOVE AND REATTACHED LAP SIDING TO ATTACH LEDGER BOARD TO BUILDING


07  62   00   00 0064 26 Gauge Galvanized Steel Flashing26 $200.43SF


Installation =x x  200.43
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 7.32  1.0141 27.00


USED FOR FLASHING AT LEDGER


$367.39Subtotal for 07 - Thermal & Moisture Protection


09 - Finishes


09  91   13   00 0210 Paint Exterior Wood Floors And Decks, One Coat Primer, Brush/Roller Work27 $108.81SF


Installation =x x  108.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 0.37  1.0141 290.00


PRIME DECK BOARDS AND RIM BOARD


09  91   13   00 0210 0220 For Quantities > 250 To 500, Add28 $11.76MOD


Installation =x x  11.76
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 0.04  1.0141 290.00


09  91   13   00 0212 Paint Exterior Wood Floors And Decks, Two Coats Paint, Brush/Roller Work29 $191.16SF


Installation =x x  191.16
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 0.65  1.0141 290.00


PAINT DECK BOARDS AND RIM BOARD


09  91   13   00 0212 0219 For Quantities > 100 To 250, Add30 $50.00MOD


Installation =x x  50.00
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 0.17  1.0141 290.00


09  91   13   00 0375 Paint Stair Pipe Rail And Pickets, 2 Rails One Coat Alkyd Enamel31 $591.12LF


Installation =x x  591.12
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 1.34  1.0141 435.00


PRIME PICKETS AND RAIL


09  91   13   00 0376 Paint Stair Pipe Rail And Pickets, 2 Rails Two Coats Alkyd Enamel32 $1,019.02LF


Installation =x x  1,019.02
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 2.31  1.0141 435.00


PAINT PICKETS AND RAIL


09  91   13   00 0448 Paint Wood Stair (To 4' Wide) One Coat Primer33 $89.23RSR


Installation =x x  89.23
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 4.19  1.0141 21.00


PRIME STAIRS


09  91   13   00 0452 Paint Wood Stair (To 4' Wide) Two Coats Alkyd Enamel34 $178.67RSR


Installation =x x  178.67
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 8.39  1.0141 21.00


PAINT STAIRS


Page 4 of 6


4/9/2015


Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail


ezIQC - NJPA - GA







Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail Continues..


Work Order Title:


Work Order Number: 029407.00


FC Stars Mill House Porch Repair


Proposal Name:


$14,367.99


FC Starrs Mill House Deck Repair


Proposal Value:


Labor


Sect. Item Modifer UOM Description Line Total


MaterialEquip. (Excluded if marked with an X)


09 - Finishes


09  91   13   00 0469 Paint Exterior Wood Trim, 1 Coat Primer, Brush/Roller Work35 $113.58SF


Installation =x x  113.58
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 0.56  1.0141 200.00


PRIME DECK POST


09  91   13   00 0471 Paint Exterior Wood Trim, 2 Coats Paint, Brush/Roller Work36 $237.30SF


Installation =x x  237.30
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 1.17  1.0141 200.00


PAINT DECK POST


$2,590.65Subtotal for 09 - Finishes


31 - Earthwork


31  23   16   36 0009 Excavation For Building Foundations And Other Structures By Hand in Soil37 $18.46CY


Installation =x x  18.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 36.41  1.0141 0.50


HAND EXCAVATION


31  23   16   36 0022 Compaction Of Fill Or Subbase For Building Foundations and Other Structures 


by Hand


38 $17.36CY


Installation =x x  17.36
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 11.41  1.0141 1.50


COMPACT SUB GRADE


31  23   16   36 0032 Spread Excess Or Imported Material On Site By Hand39 $134.53CY


Installation =x x  134.53
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 14.74  1.0141 9.00


HAND SPREAD EXCAVATED SOIL


$170.35Subtotal for 31 - Earthwork


32 - Exterior Improvements


32  16   23   00 0002 4" (10 cm) Cast In Place Concrete Sidewalk With Wire Mesh40 $86.46SF


Installation =x x  86.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 4.06  1.0141 21.00


CONCRETE LANDING PAD


32  16   23   00 0002 0108 For Quantities Up To 100, Add41 $34.29MOD


Installation =x x  34.29
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 1.61  1.0141 21.00


32  16   23   00 0002 0112 For Sidewalk Without Wire Mesh, Deduct42 -$7.24MOD


Installation =x x -7.24
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


-0.34  1.0141 21.00


32  31   13   00 0014 36" (91 cm) Diameter Hole, Auger By Machine Fence Post Hole In Soil43 $573.93VLF


Installation =x x  573.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 17.15  1.0141 33.00


AUGER HOLES FOR POST


Page 5 of 6


4/9/2015


Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail


ezIQC - NJPA - GA







Contractor's Price Proposal - Detail Continues..


Work Order Title:


Work Order Number: 029407.00


FC Stars Mill House Porch Repair


Proposal Name:


$14,367.99


FC Starrs Mill House Deck Repair


Proposal Value:


Labor


Sect. Item Modifer UOM Description Line Total


MaterialEquip. (Excluded if marked with an X)


32 - Exterior Improvements


32  31   13   00 0031 Concrete Fill, 36" (91 cm) Diameter Hole44 $966.81VLF


Installation =x x  966.81
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total


 28.89  1.0141 33.00


CONCRETE FILL FOR POST HOLES


$1,654.25Subtotal for 32 - Exterior Improvements


$14,367.99


This total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 


sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding.


Proposal Total


Page 6 of 6


4/9/2015


Subcontractor Listing


ezIQC - NJPA - GA












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


May 14, 2015
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in an Official Meeting on May 14, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Charles Oddo, Chairman
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio


Commissioners Absent: Pota Coston, Vice Chair
David Barlow


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Staff Absent: Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy County Clerk
________________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order 


Chairman Oddo called the May 14, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.


Invocation by Commissioner Ognio


Commissioner Ognio asked Student Pastor Caleb Davis, from Heritage Christian Church, to provide the invocation.
Pastor Davis offered the Invocation.


Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Oddo asked Pastor Davis to lead the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance, and Pastor Davis did so.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being absent.



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #12







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 2


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Hopeful Church's 190th Anniversary.


Chairman Oddo and the Board recognized Hopeful Church’s 190th Anniversary.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Clarity Provided on Procedures in the Absence of Two Commissioners: Chairman Oddo pointed out that Vice
Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow were absent from the meeting and he asked County Attorney Dennis
Davenport to refresh the Board on the procedures in the absence of two Commissioners. Mr. Davenport stated that
there was a procedural issue that ordinarily does not become an issue since the procedure is that any action taken
by the Board is the result of at least three affirmative votes.  He explained that since there were only three
Commissioners in attendance any action would have to have to be agreed upon unanimously in order to go forward.


PUBLIC HEARING:


There were no Public Hearing items on the Agenda.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Chairman Oddo asked to remove Consent Agenda Items 2 and 4 for consideration.  


Commissioner Brown moved to approve the Consent Agenda excluding Consent Agenda Items 2 and 4. 
Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston
and Commissioner Barlow being absent.


2. Approval of staff's request for approval to accept a $1,000.00 grant awarded by Best Friends Animal
Sanctuary to be applied as a travel stipend for two staff members of Fayette County Animal Control
who will attend the Best Friends National Conference from July 16-19, 2015 in Cobb County,
Georgia. 


Commissioner Ognio asked that either the County Administrator or the County Chairman be approved to
sign the contract to accept the grant.


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept staff’s request for approval to accept a $1,000.00 grant awarded by
Best Friends Animal Sanctuary to be applied as a travel stipend for two staff members of Fayette County
Animal Control who will attend the Best Friends National Conference from July 16-19, 2015 in Cobb
County, Georgia and to approve the County Administrator or Chairman to sign the contract.  Commissioner
Brown seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston and
Commissioner Barlow being absent.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of staff's recommendation to combine Projects 5565I, 5565E and 5565A, each of which are
related to the Old Courthouse Renovation, into one project in order to facilitate the change in project
scope while simplify the purchasing and accounting processes.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 3


4. Approval of staff's request to contract with PRA Government Services, LLC, doing business as RDS,
to provide services for potential discovery and recovery of occupational and business license
revenue, and approval for the County Administrator to sign the required documents.


Chairman Oddo noted that the Agenda referred to the “recovery of occupational and business license
revenue,” and he stated that it really should read “occupational tax revenue.”


Commissioner Brown moved to approve staff’s request to contract with PRA Government Services, LLC,
doing business as RDS, to provide services for potential discovery and recovery of occupational tax
revenue, and approval for the County Administrator to sign the required documents.  Commissioner Ognio
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston and
Commissioner Barlow being absent.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff's request to re-assign an aggregate $38,489.00 from two Information Technology
projects to the Equipment Refresh project.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5,”
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of staff's recommendation to add River Park Phase 1A subdivision to Fayette County's
Street Light Program.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of the April 23, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


8. Discussion of the previous Board of Commissioners directive on the production of meeting
minutes, review of time and analysis of minutes production, and comparison of minutes from other
Georgia Counties for Board consideration regarding the production of County Commission meeting
minutes.


Chairman Oddo suggested that since two Commissioners were absent that it would be prudent to table Old
Business #8 until the May 28, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Brown pointed out
that there were citizens in the audience who wanted to discuss this matter and so the issue should be
discussed.  Commissioner Ognio added that he also wanted to discuss the matter.


Commissioner Ognio moved to continue having the minutes produced as they have been produced for the
past two years.  Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  The Board discussed the motion for 18
minutes before opening the floor for public comment.


Commissioner Brown said this was a deep philosophical and very principled point for him since he is very
much for open government and transparency, and he said there is an obligation to provide the most open
and transparent government to the citizens.  He said he would support any action that would provide
increased openness and transparency but that he would oppose anything that would backtrack from where
the Board has been for the past two years.  He stated that the constituents would not be served by limiting
speech that is either spoken or written into the minutes, and he stated that the 1st Amendment to the
Constitution gives the assurance of liberty and freedom.  He thought the Board needed to work hard to







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 4


protect fundamental liberties, pointed out that there have been two years of ample expression in the Board
of Commissioners meetings without a single complaint from an elected official or citizen, and concluded
that the system has worked very well and should continue.


Commissioner Ognio stated the minutes were not verbatim but they are more than brief minutes.  He
thought the current method was good so long as more detail could be added to the minutes.  He stated that
he has looked into technology in order to make the minutes more efficient, and he said he cares about time
and efficiency since it involves financial concerns.  He said the minutes are the best they can be without
increasing a financial burden.  He added that it takes time to produce and review minutes, and he said
verbatim minutes require making sure each spoken word is correct.  He concluded that he did not want to
have verbatim minutes produced.


Commissioner Brown said one point of confusion concerned expediency in how minutes would be treated in
a business, but he stated that government is not a business and that some things should not be sacrificed
for the sake of efficiency.  He agreed that the government should be good stewards of the money and offer
good customer service, but there are some things worth spending additional money to have, specifically,
having minutes that provide a realistic picture of what transpired in a meeting.


Chairman Oddo replied that he did not oppose free speech or transparency. He said minutes originally were
intended to record what occurred in a meeting and that the minimum requirements are “very minimum.”  He
said the problems that he saw concerned consistency and the need to maintain neutrality in the minutes. 
He explained that the minutes need to present a neutral reading of what occurred and that summary
minutes should provide the basic facts.  Chairman Oddo explained that technology has come a long way
and that video and audio records are available to provide opportunities for people to view what and how
something was said during a meeting.  He said the problem is when any Commissioner wishes to make an
addition since it creates efficiency issues while setting up a more adversarial relationship.  Chairman Oddo
suggested that most people are capable of looking at the video recordings so transparency is not an issue. 
He explained that there are many avenues for Commissioners to express their thoughts and concerns,
whether through the media, email, Facebook or other means, but he said it is during Board of
Commissioners meetings where official actions are taken and the records should be neutral.  Chairman
Oddo concluded that he wanted summarized minutes and not verbatim minutes.


Commissioner Brown responded that he did not want minimum requirements for minutes, that he did not
run for office to be neutral, and that the people who elected him did not vote for him to be neutral.  He said
opinions should be provided in the minutes, and he added that items are read into minutes all the time from
all levels of government.  Commissioner Brown pointed out that the minutes are the official document
detailing the meeting and he said the courts do not use audio or video files since they rely on the official
minutes.  He added that audio and video files can be destroyed at a later date so the record would be lost,
and he suggested that the Board would be “throwing caution to the wind” by watering down the minutes
while relying on audio and video records that can be destroyed.  He stated that there has not been a
change of routine and that three members currently sitting on the Board have requested their statements to
be included into the minutes.


Chairman Oddo agreed that each Commissioner was elected because they have very strong opinions
about how things should be done, but he asked if the Board wanted to be in a position where additions can
be made to the official minutes that are baseless and could affect people’s perceptions of the Board.  He
stated that he did not want only basic minutes since he wanted minutes that had some summary, but that







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 5


the content of the minutes should be up to staff.  He said the media is glad to take comments from the
Commissioners, but that Board of Commissioners meetings are the only venue where facts can be given
without “getting into the adjectives that can distort what actually happened.”  He suggested that the citizens
do not get justice when personal opinions are placed into the minutes.


Commissioner Brown replied that everybody’s opinion is important and there is no such thing as a “non-
important opinion.”  He asked who the arbitrator of whose opinion is important or not important, and he said
that is the reason why everyone’s opinion is put into the minutes. 


Commissioner Ognio said there was no problem with the way minutes have been produced since it is the
best of both worlds.  He said he was concerned with the textual formatting in the minutes.


Chairman Oddo opened the floor for public comment.


Martine Yancey: Ms. Yancey spoke for ten minutes on her disappointment with the Board of
Commissioners and where it is heading.  She referred to the recent issue concerning Red Wolf Lodge in
Peachtree City, and she said the same problems in Peachtree City, namely, ignoring what the majority of
citizens want and a lack of transparency were occurring in Fayette County.  Ms. Yancey added that
censoring meeting minutes is inexcusable.  Ms. Yancey proceeded to give several examples of problems
that she had with the Board in general, several Commissioners in particular, and county staff.


Maria del Pilar Oddo: Mrs. Oddo asked Ms. Yancey if she wrote her public comments herself or if
someone wrote the comments for her.  


Pamela Kemp: Ms. Kemp stated that the meeting minutes are hybrid minutes since they are a combination
of summary and detailed minutes.  She added that there was an implied understanding that if someone
provided a digital copy of a statement that it would be included into the minutes in its entirety.  She said
when she worked with Peachtree City in the past it would take only a quick search by staff to produce
minutes from previous years.  She was concerned that looking through videos of meetings would not make
as much sense as being able to pull up past meeting minutes.


Linda Flowers: Ms. Flowers asked if the video recording would be useable in legal proceedings.  She
suggested that if the meeting minutes were produced to the minimal standard, and if there was any sort of
situation, then the minutes would be a disservice to the citizens since they would not provide all of the
needed information.  Ms. Flowers understood that there was a financial consideration to the production of
minutes, but she urged the Board to maintain the hybrid minutes.  Ms. Flowers further questioned why
closed-captioning was not provided on the video feed, and she asked why the minutes could not be
produced in a neutral, non-opinionated way since there are court reporters that produce transcriptions that
contain no personal opinion.  


Denise Ognio: Mrs. Ognio suggested that the Board look up Robert’s Rules of Order for a definition and
examples of meeting minutes.  She rejected the idea that things should continue “as they always have
been,” especially when there are options available for making changes.  She thought the current method of
producing minutes was working and agreed that transparency is important, but she asked at what point a
person put material into the minutes that it becomes a problem.  She suggested that the Board work with
each other to make the process work.  Mrs. Ognio “hated” the comments that were made saying the County
is not transparent and she thought the allegation was “over-wording” the matter since the Board and county







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 6


are transparent.  Ms. Ognio also took exception to the concept that producing minutes involves simply
“copying and pasting” since there is additional work involved in the production of minutes, and she said the
suggestion that “it is a simple two-second copy/ paste” made the work seem small and was minimizing the
amount of effort involved.  She stated that the County Clerk works very hard behind the scenes, that it costs
money, and that the Board needed to work together in order to keep transparency.


The Board replied to various comments that were given by the citizens.


The motion to continue having the minutes produced as they have been produced for the past two years
failed 2-1 with Chairman Oddo voting in opposition and Vice Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being
absent.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


9. Consideration of the April 3, 2015 Board of Commissioners Retreat Minutes.  These minutes were
tabled by the Board during the April 23, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the April 3, 2015 Board of Commissioners Retreat Minutes as
included in the Agenda packet.  Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  


Commissioner Brown stated that reason the minutes were originally tabled was because there was one
item discussed at the April 3, 2015 Retreat where the Board did not finish the discussion.  He stated that
the minutes now included a summation statement into the minutes clarifying where the Board wanted to go
with the item.  Chairman Oddo stated that he would vote to approve the minutes since they were prepared
based on the current Board direction.


The motion to approve the April 3, 2015 Board of Commissioners Retreat Minutes passed 3-0 with Vice
Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being absent.


10. Consideration of the April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  These minutes were
tabled at by the Board during the April 23, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes with
the amendment that bold or italics text be removed from any statements that were made.  Commissioner
Brown seconded the motion.  


Commissioner Brown stated that he made the bold and italics text that were provided to the County Clerk. 
He stated that the formatting was to help in reading the statement into the record and it had no intention of
emphasizing anything.  Chairman Oddo stated that he would vote to approve these minutes as well since
they were prepared based on current Board direction.


The motion to approve the April 9, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes with the amendment that
bold or italics text be removed from any statements that were made passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston and
Commissioner Barlow being absent.







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 7


NEW BUSINESS:


11. Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Gail L. Anderson to the
Region Six Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Addictive Diseases Regional Planning
Board for a three-year term beginning March 1, 2015 and expiring February 28, 2018.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Gail L.
Anderson to the Region Six Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Addictive Diseases Regional
Planning Board for a three-year term beginning March 1, 2015 and expiring February 28, 2018. 
Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0 with Vice
Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being absent.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8,”
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


12. Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2015-06 in support of the Whitewater
Creek Water Trail in Fayette County.


Environmental Management Director Vanessa Birrell briefed the Board on Resolution 2015-06.


Commissioner Brown moved to adopt Resolution 2015-06 and to amend the resolution to read as follows:  
“WHEREAS, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners supports the Southern Conservation Trust to
work and educate the citizens of Fayette County.”  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.


Commissioner Ognio amended the motion to strike the last sentence of the Resolution.  Commissioner
Brown agreed with Commissioner Ognio’s amendment.


Chairman Oddo amended the motion to reword the Resolution to read “WHEREAS, the Fayette County
Board of Commissioners supports the Southern Conservation Trust working with and educating the citizens
of Fayette County.”  Commissioner Brown agreed to Chairman Oddo’s suggestion.


Commissioner Brown amended his motion to include the suggestions from the Board.  Commissioner
Ognio seconded the amended motion.


The motion to accept staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2015-06 in support of the Whitewater
Creek Water Trail in Fayette County with amendments, namely, to strike the last sentence from the
resolution beginning with “Be it further”, and to reword the Resolution to read” “WHEREAS, the Fayette
County Board of Commissioners supports the Southern Conservation Trust working with and educating the
citizens of Fayette County” passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being absent. 
Copies of the request and Resolution 2015-06, identified as “Attachment 9,” follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.


13. Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2015-07 and in so doing revising
qualifications for members of the Fayette County Recreation Commission by allowing at-large
appointments for each member.


Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee briefed the Board on Resolution 2015-07.







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 8


Commissioner Ognio moved to adopt Resolution 2015-07 and in so doing revising qualifications for
members of the Fayette County Recreation Commission by allowing at-large appointments for each
member.  Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0
with Vice Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being absent.  Copies of the request and Resolution
2015-07, identified as “Attachment 10,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


14. Consideration of staff's request to adopt the proposed Kenwood Park Master Plan revision and
implementation of Phase II proposed future improvements.


Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee briefed the Board on this request.


Commissioner Ognio moved to adopt the proposed Kenwood Park Master Plan revision and
implementation of Phase II proposed future improvements and to sweep residual funds from all individual
Parks and Recreation budget accounts into one fund to create one Recreation fund.  Commissioner Brown
seconded the motion.  


Commissioner Brown acknowledged that there had been friction concerning the Kenwood Park Master
Plan, but that there was a process that needed to be followed in sending proposals through the proper
channels.  He wished Commissioner Coston had been able to be at the meeting so she could comment on
the proposals.  Commissioner Brown suggested that there should be a joint meeting between the Board of
Commissioners and the Recreation Commission to take a global look at the parks in order to determine
where recreation is going and how to financially maintain the current parks and proposed future amenities.
Brief discussion followed concerning how parks are currently funded.


The motion to adopt the proposed Kenwood Park Master Plan revision and implementation of Phase II
proposed future improvements and to sweep residual funds from all individual Parks and Recreation budget
accounts into one fund to create one Recreation fund passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston and
Commissioner Barlow being absent.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


15. Consideration of staff's recommendation to reduce the Defined Contribution Plan Employee Deferral
from 8.00% to 5.00% and to reduce the Match for Elected and Constitutional Officials from 4.00% to
2.5% as discussed at the Board of Commissioners Retreat on April 3, 2015.


Commissioner Brown moved to reduce the Defined Contribution Plan Employee Deferral from 8.00% to
5.00% and to reduce the match for Elected and Constitutional Officials from 4.00% to 2.5% as discussed at
the Board of Commissioners Retreat on April 3, 2015.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown moved to make the reductions become effective beginning Fiscal Year 2016. 
Commissioner Ognio seconded the amended motion.  


Chairman Oddo mentioned that this recommendation was not his first option but that there are budget
constraints this year that needed to be taken into consideration.







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 9


The motion to reduce the Defined Contribution Plan Employee Deferral from 8.00% to 5.00% and to reduce
the match for Elected and Constitutional Officials from 4.00% to 2.5% as discussed at the Board of
Commissioners Retreat on April 3, 2015, and to make the reductions effective beginning Fiscal Year 2016
passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being absent.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 12,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Robert and Theresa Swift: Mr. Swift spoke on behalf of himself and his wife by imploring the Board to help locate
their granddaughter who had been missing since Mother’s Day, May 10, 2015.  He asked the Board to assist the
family in getting the message to the media and the public.  He mentioned that there is no media coverage since
there is a policy with the Sheriff’s Office and since she was currently being considered a “runaway.” Mr. Swift then
gave contact information to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office.


Major Tommy Pope: Major Pope, Director of the Fayette County’s Sheriff’s Office- Criminal Investigation Division,
stated that the Sheriff’s Office does not have a policy pertaining to media coverage as suggested by Mr. Swift, but
rather it is a policy of the news media.  Major Pope stated that the major news media typically do not take these
stories because there are so many similar cases in the metro-Atlanta area.  


Dawn Oparah: Ms. Oparah thanked the Board for allowing public comments, but she stated there should be rules
established concerning public comments.  She said it pained her to hear citizens disrespect public officials, and she
said if she was watching the procedures while thinking about moving into Fayette County, she would reconsider
moving to Fayette County.  Ms. Oparah suggested that there should be decorum established about who makes
public comments so that the comments are respectful.  She asked the County Administrator and Attorney to
establish standards for decorum for public comments.


Emory McHugh: Mr. McHugh spoke for 19 minutes about the need for transparency and internal controls in the
County’s procurement process.  He stated that the Board’s decision on April 9, 2015 “to leave the ability to the
County Administrator and to the County Chairman to approve county contracts up to $200,000.00 without formal,
open board approval was a serious mistake and represents an abdication of the responsibility of the Board of
Commissioners under the law.”  Mr. McHugh detailed the process he used to reach his understanding and he
provided examples of findings that caused him concern.  Mr. McHugh left the meeting after his comments.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Selection Committee for the Planning Commission: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that there was a
vacancy on the Planning Commission due to Mr. Bob Simmons’ resignation, and he asked for a Selection
Committee to be established.  Chairman Oddo and Commissioner Ognio agreed to serve on the Selection
Committee.


Extension of the Public Property Use Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville: County
Administrator Steve Rapson stated that the City of Fayetteville had asked to extend the Intergovernmental
Agreement it has with Fayette County for the use of Public Property.  He stated a letter would be sent to the city
agreeing to the one-year extension.







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 10


May 28, 2015 Budget Meeting: County Administrator Rapson stated that a public meeting would be called for
Thursday, May 28, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. where the budget books and a formal presentation would be given to the
Board.  He asked the Commissioners to make sure this meeting was on their calendars.


Appointments to Various Boards, Authorities, and Committees: County Administrator Rapson stated that the
previous administration did not advertise for the various boards, authorities, and committees.  He said it was good to
go back and look at the facts and available stats, and he stated that if a person reviewed the past two years they
would find that Fayette County has appointed 33 board members through its advertisement process.  He said it was
an indication of the type of quality residents who live in Fayette County.


Response concerning County Transparency, Policies, and Approval Authority: County Administrator Steve
Rapson stated that there was a lot of discussion about county transparency, how polices are changed, and the
approval authority he has for procurements.  He said he has increased the transparency by providing a document on
the dais to the Board detailing where the policies are available on the county’s website.  The county policies and the
two-page list outlining the eight contracts and a copy of those contracts for this fiscal year are now available for
inspection on the county website and part of the official record.  He added that all the contracts that he has approved
between $50,000.00 to $200,000.00 from this fiscal year are loaded online, and that the dais document he provided
to the Board details where to locate the approved contracts on the website.


Emergency Procurement for a High-Band Antenna: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that he authorized
the emergency procurement for a high-band antenna.  He said the antenna is 25-feet tall, is located at the 911
Center, and is in need of repair. He said it is a communication tool, is the backup for the Motorola capabilities, and it
allows for communication outside of Fayette County.  He said it would be on the Agenda either on May 28 or the first
meeting of June, but that the emergency procurement was going forward on this matter.


Noise Test at The Links Golf Course: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that there would be a noise test
conducted at The Links Golf Course on Saturday, May 16 at 9:00 p.m.  He said the Sheriff’s Office and the Marshal’s
Department were instrumental in getting the testing accomplished.


Response to Public Comments: County Administrator Steve Rapson replied to the comments given by Ms.
Yancey with regard to public oversight.  He said he was more than willing to sit with a resident and discuss their
concerns.  He also replied to the concerns Mr. McHugh spoke of during public comments.  


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Notification of Executive Session: County Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that he had one item of
Threatened Litigation and the Review of the April 23, 2015 Executive Session Minutes for consideration in Executive
Session.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown stated that last year the Board sent a resolution to its legislative
delegation asking for the citizens to decide if it wants fluoride in its water.  He said Representative Stover took the
matter to the legislature but it never got out of committee.  He reported that the federal government has recently
issued a mandate to reduce the amount of fluoride in drinking water since it is finding a high number of cases of
fluorosis in the teeth of teens and children.  He said there is a need to look at the issue and he hoped
Representative Stover will take the matter back to the Board.  Commissioner Brown thanked County Administrator







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 11


Rapson for providing the dais documents saying that was all he had been asking for, but he asked for all policies
that have fiduciary implications to still come before the Board.  Commissioner Brown stated that he is getting several
phone calls from people complaining that their property values are rising.  He said the people should be glad to have
their values rising up, but that they should not equate rising property values with a rise in property taxes.  He said he
saw the rising property valuations as a positive sign for Fayette County.  Commissioner Brown replied to Ms.
Oparah’s comments saying he was very sensitive to the issue since care has to be given to who is good and who is
bad and what comments are acceptable.  He spoke about how, in the 1990s, he challenged the Peachtree City
Council by writing to the newspaper.  He said he was sued by the City Attorney and that he won against the attorney. 
He said once the right to speak is given up or eroded then it never comes back.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio thanked County Administrator Steve Rapson for putting the policies
and contracts on the website.  He said transparency is a work in progress at the county.  He agreed with
Commissioner Brown saying he did not have a problem when someone attacked him during Public Comment, but he
said he did have an issue when people attacked county employees by name.  He hoped the Board could keep that
from happening since it is uncalled for.  He said he looked forward to hearing from the citizens and he did not think
there should be a limit to citizens talking about those who are elected.  He wished everyone a belated Happy
Mother’s Day.


Chairman Oddo: Chairman Oddo stated that while rising property values can be bittersweet, it represented an
improvement in Fayette County.  He added that the restoration at the Historic Courthouse is progressing.  He
understood that comments will be made to elected officials, but he added that citizens can get worked up and
passionate before making comments that they have not researched.  He asked that if a person had a problem or
concerns then to call him since the best way to solve problems or concerns is to converse.  He said he was always
available and he asked the people to call him before assuming the worst.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Threatened Litigation and Review of the April 23, 2015 Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner Brown
moved to recess into Executive Session.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being absent.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 9:10 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:27 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to return to Official
Session and to authorize the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Brown seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0 with Vice Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being
absent. A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 13,” follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


April 23, 2015 Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the April 23, 2015 Executive
Session Minutes.  Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0 with
Vice Chair Coston and Commissioner Barlow being absent.







Minutes
May 14, 2015
Page Number 12


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Ognio moved to adjourn the May 14, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Brown
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0 with Commissioners Barlow and Coston
being absent.


The May 14, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 9:27 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                  Charles W. Oddo, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 28th day of May 2015.  Referenced attachments are available upon request at the County
Clerk’s Office.


___________________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


May 28, 2015
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order 
Invocation by Vice Chair Coston
Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Dixie Wing, designated as the 83rd Commemorative Air
Force unit, and its flight over the Washington Mall in honor of the 70th
anniversary of Victory in Europe Day.


2. Recognition to the members of Team Fayette County Fire who participated
in the American Lung Association's Fight for Air Climb. 


3. Recognition of Fayette County Road Department Assistant Director,
Bradley Klinger, as recipient of the Team Player Award.


4. Presentation from Mr. Mike Conaway regarding the 2015 Global Leadership
Summit.


5. Presentation by the Georgia Forestry Commission concerning the Forest
Action Plan, Georgia Forestry Services, and other opportunities that might
serve other Fayette County needs.


PUBLIC HEARING:


6. Public Hearing of Petition No. 1244-15, ALH DGT Investments, LLC,
Owner, and Robert Rolader, Agent, request to rezone 77.45 acres from A-
R to C-S to develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision
with said property being located in Land Lots 223 & 224 of the 4th District
and fronting on Bernhard Road.   The Applicant has requested to withdraw
the rezoning application. 


CONSENT AGENDA:


7. Ratification of the emergency replacement by Diversified Electronics, Inc. of
the high-band antenna at E911 for the amount of $11,542.43 and approval
of the transfer of funds from E-911 project contingency for this purpose.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Charles Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair


David Barlow
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
May 28, 2015
Page Number 2


8. Approval of staff's recommendation to reappoint Deputy Fire Chief Thomas F. Bartlett and Division Chief
Steven G. Folden to the West Georgia Region IV Emergency Medical Services Council for a two-year term.


9. Approval of the Tax Assessor's Office recommendation to deny the disposition of tax refunds.


10. Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with Centennial Contractors Enterprises,
Inc., in the amount of $14,368.00 from renewal and extension funds, to replace the existing wooden deck at
Starr's Mill, and authorization for the County Administrator sign the contract and any related documents.


11. Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to approve the Radio Control Sailboat Regatta at Lake
McIntosh, from September 12 to September 13, to waive parking fees for participants, to name this year's
regatta the "Second Annual Sailboat Event."


12. Approval of the May 14, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


13. Consideration of staff's request to establish a two-year corporation/businesses decal charge, at $1.00 per
decal, which would allow corporations and businesses to use both Lake McIntosh Park and Lake Horton
Park Monday through Friday. 


14. Staff is requesting approval to continue recording county minutes as discussed and approved by the Board
of Commissioners on August 1, 2012.


NEW BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of staff's recommendation to authorize Task Order Proposal FC018 with CH2M Hill for
improvements at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant, in the amount of $442,103.00, and authorization for
the County Administrator to sign all related documents.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Proclamation/Recognition #1


Board of Commissioners Chairman Charles W. Oddo


Recognition of Dixie Wing, designated as the 83rd Commemorative Air Force unit, and its flight over the Washington Mall in honor of the 


70th anniversary of Victory in Europe Day.


The Commemorative Air Force (CAF), based in Texas, was founded to acquire, restore ,and preserve in flying condition a complete 


collection of combat aircraft that were flown by all military services of the United States, and selected aircraft of other nations, for the 


education and enjoyment of present and future generation of Americans.  More than just a collection of airworthy warplanes from the 


CAF's fleet of historic aircraft, known as the CAF Ghost Squadron, recreate, remind, and reinforce the lessons learned from the defining 


moments in American military aviation history.  The Dixie Wings was approved as the 83rd CAF unit on February 28, 1987, and has since 


displayed its collection of vintage World War II aircraft in numerous air shows throughout the Southeast.  The wing is a non-profit, tax-


exempt, "flying museum" that depends on contributions of time and funds to carry out its mission.  The Dixie Wind is an all-volunteer 


organization based at Atlanta Regional Airport- Falcon Field.  The Wing has six operating aircraft, two in the process of restoration, and 


several other aircraft and vehicles as part of its flying museum display. 


 


As part of the Arsenal of Democracy commemoration on May 9, 2015 in Washington, D.C., the Dixie Wing sent three aircraft- a P-51 


Mustang, Corsair, and a SBD Dauntless Dive Bomber- to participate in the unprecedented display of more than 50 World War II aircraft 


over the Washington Mall in honor of the 70th anniversary of Victory in Europe Day.  One of the aircraft carried the original Fayette 


County Flag, made in 1971, that was displayed in the the County Board Room for many years.


Recognition of Dixie Wing, designated as the 83rd Commemorative Air Force unit, and its flight over the Washington Mall in honor of the 


70th anniversary of Victory in Europe Day.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, May 28, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition







About the Commemorative Air Force Dixie Wing 


The Commemorative Air Force, based in Texas, was founded to acquire, restore and preserve in 


flying condition a complete collection of combat aircraft that were flown by all military services 


of the United States, and selected aircraft of other nations, for the education and enjoyment of 


present and future generations of Americans. 


More than just a collection of airworthy warplanes from the past, the CAF's fleet of historic 


aircraft, known as the CAF Ghost Squadron, recreate, remind and reinforce the lessons learned 


from the defining moments in American military aviation history. 


The Dixie Wing was approved as the 83rd CAF unit on Feb. 28, 1987, and has since displayed 


its collection of vintage World War II aircraft in numerous air shows throughout the Southeast. 


The wing is a non-profit, tax-exempt "flying museum" that depends on contributions of time and 


funds to carry out its mission. 


The Dixie Wing is an all-volunteer organization based at Atlanta Regional Airport – Falcon Field 


in Fayette County. Its members have hosted World War II Heritage Days at Falcon Field for 12 


years, dedicated to preserving the memories of all Americans who played a role in the war effort 


of the 1940s. The Wing has six operating aircraft, two in the process of restoration, and several 


other aircraft and vehicles as part of its flying museum display. 


The Dixie Wing Hangar and Museum are open to the public on Tuesday, Thursday and Saturday 


each week. The Wing also conducts educational programs for school groups, Scout  


organizations and other community groups. 


As part of the Arsenal of Democracy commemoration on May 8 in Washington, D.C., the Dixie 


Wing sent three aircraft – a P-51 Mustang, Corsair and SBD Dauntless Dive Bomber -- to 


participate in the unprecedented display of more than 50 WWII aircraft over the Washington 


Mall in honor of the 70
th


 anniversary of VE Day. One of the aircraft carried the original Fayette 


County Flag, made in 1971, that was displayed in the County Board Room for many decades. 


 


 





		Commissioners- Dixie Wings Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Dixie Wings Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Charles W. Oddo


Presentation by the Georgia Forestry Commission concerning the Forest Action Plan, Georgia Forestry Services, and other opportunities 


that might serve other Fayette County needs.


Communications and Public Affairs Specialist Joanna Warren of the Georgia Forestry Commission has request a few moments to update 


the Board on the Forest Action Plan, Georgia Forestry Commission Services, and other opportunities. 


 


The Forest Action Plan is the result of the Georgia Statewide Forest Resources Assessment and the Forest Resources Strategy.  These 


two documents were produced in accordance with the 2008 Farm Bill in order to position Georgia to receive funds under the Cooperative 


Forestry Assistance Act.  The Assessment provides a science-based foundation that analyzes forest conditions and trends in the state 


and defines priority rural and urban forest landscape areas.  The Strategy addresses top priority issues identified by the Assessment and 


serves as the basis for the five-year plan (See "Exhibit A.") 


 


"Exhibit B" provides a list of Georgia Forestry Commission Services. 


 


"Exhibit C" is a feature article how communities can be prepared in the event of a wildfire.


This is a presentation from the Georgia Forestry Commission.  No action is requested.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, May 28, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #5







Forest Action Plan


Vision
Healthy, sustainable forests providing clean air, 
clean water and abundant products for future 


generations.


Mission
To provide leadership, service and education 


in the protection and conservation of Georgia’s 
forest resources.


For more information, please contact:
Joanna Warren


Communications Specialist 
jwarren@gfc.state.ga.us


5645 Riggins Mill Road
Dry Branch, GA  31020
1-800-GA-TREES
GaTrees.org


Forest Action Plan: 
GFC’s Five-Year Strategic Plan


The Georgia Statewide Forest Resources 
Assessment and the Forest Resources Strategy 
were produced in accordance with the 2008 Farm 
Bill in order to position Georgia to receive funds 
under the Cooperative Forestry Assistance Act.


The Assessment provides a science-based 
foundation that analyzes forest conditions and 
trends in the state and defines priority rural and 
urban forest landscape areas. 


The Strategy addresses top priority issues 
identified by the Assessment and serves as the 
basis for the five-year plan.


Together, these documents are known as The 
Forest Action Plan. 







Georgia’s Threats


1. Water Quality and Quantity


2. Urbanization


3. Forest Health


4. Biodiversity


5. Air Quality


6. Fire Management


7. Fragmentation and 
Parcelization


8. Economics and Changing 
Markets


What role can county commissioners play in 
protecting Georgia’s forests?


 � Learn about local invasive species threats 
at GaTrees.org.


 � Help your communities earn Firewise and 
Tree Cities USA designations.


 � Learn about fire protection and the benefits 
of forest management tools such as 
prescribed burns.


 � Support local forestland owners & industry 
by learning about initiatives including 
carbon sequestration and cost-share 
programs at GaTrees.org.


 � Continue working with your local GFC unit to 
protect forests, air and water quality using 
Best Management Practices.


The Forest Action Plan focuses on three state and 
private forest national priorities:


1. Conserve working forest landscapes.


2. Protect forests from harm.


3. Enhance public benefits from trees and 
forests.


Georgia’s forestland, which encompasses 24 million 
acres, is a rich and renewable resource that provides 
a myriad of benefits to citizens across the state.


Talk with your county’s GFC rangers and foresters 
to see how your resources and forestland can be 
sustained! 


Sustainable forests - 
meet the environmental, economic and social needs of the present 
without compromising those capabilities for the future.







Forest Fire Protection and Prevention
� Wildfire detection and suppression
� Burn permit distribution and administration; 


for hand-piled debris burn permits, visit 
GaTrees.org or call 877-OK2-BURN. Call 
your local GFC county office for large burns


� Firebreak plowing (fee-based)
� Mechanical fuel treatment services (fee-based)
� Prescribed burning assistance (fee-based)
� Prescribed burning training and education
� Wildfire mitigation advice and risk 


assessments for homes and communities
� Community wildfire protection planning 
� Firewise communities and practices guidance
� Basic Wildland Firefighting and National 


Incident Management System training
� Rural Fire Defense Program equipment leasing
� Wildfire prevention strategies, programs 


and education
� Emergency management support during 


disaster events
� Weather forecasting at GaTrees.org/weather


Forest Management 
� Forestry Best Management Practices 


(BMP) monitoring and education
� Forest water quality and wetland complaint 


investigation and mediation
� Assistance with federal cost-share and 


conservation programs
� Forest pests and invasive species detection
� Forest health information, education and 


training
� Multiple-use Forest Stewardship 


Management Plans and GROWS landowner 
forum


� Forest Legacy Program administration and 
conservation easement assistance


� TAG (Team Agriculture in Georgia) 
assistance for underserved landowners


� Directories for consulting foresters, forestry 
service contractors, master timber buyers, 
arborists and Christmas tree and pine straw 
producers


� Advice and plans for reforestation, timber 
stand improvement and harvesting


� Timber security law enforcement
� Tree seedling planter and spade rental 


(fee-based)


Reforestation
� Pine and hardwood seedlings sales - 


prices and species at GaTrees.org
� Tree breeding and testing
� Seed production orchards


Sustainable Community Forestry Program
� Ask-the-Arborist (GaTrees.org)
� Making the Shade
� Tree City/Tree Campus USA
� Community forest storm damage 


management
� Community forest land conservation
� Circuit rider arborist
� Green infrastructure


Forest Utilization 
� Forest products directories
� Economic impact of forestry reports and 


forestry guidance to local economic 
developers and potential business interests 
worldwide


� Timber resources and forest products 
analysis for sustainable growth of industry


� Bioenergy and other new product 
development


� Forest carbon offsets, carbon markets and 
ecosystem services assistance and Carbon 
Sequestration Registry administration – 
GaCarbon.org


For more information:
GaTrees.org
(click on Contact Us for local county office)


Districts:
Coosa ..................................................770.531.6043
Flint ......................................................229.522.3580
Oconee................................................478.445.5164 
Chattahoochee ..................................770.254.7218 
Satilla ..................................................912.287.4915
Ogeechee ...........................................229.868.3385


State Headquarters:
Macon .......................................... 1.800.GA.TREES  
                                                        478.751.3500


An Equal Opportunity Employer and Service Provider
http://www.cnpp.usda.gov/NondiscriminationStatement.htm


GaTrees.org




















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Presentation from Mr. Mike Conaway regarding the 2015 Global Leadership Summit.


Commissioner Barlow has asked Mr. Mike Conaway to present to the Board of Commissioners, and others information regarding the 


2015 Global Leadership Summit that will be held at the Heritage Christian Church in Fayetteville on Thursday, August 6-Friday, August 7. 


 


The Global Leadership Summit is known for being world-class, accessible, affordable and creates a culture of leadership that is best 


experienced as a team to help create shared vision and a common language, and is Christ-Centered.   


 


The Global Leadership Summit is a two-day, leadership event experienced by more than 260,000 leaders around the world, representing 


some 15,000 churches and featuring some 13 speakers. 


 


Mr. Mike Conaway is a representative of Heritage Christian Church, which is the host location for this year's event.


Presentation from Mr. Mike Conaway regarding the 2015 Global Leadership Summit.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, May 28, 2015



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #4







220,000
SUMMIT LEADERS REGISTERED


15,000
CHURCHES REPRESENTED AT THE SUMMIT


108
COUNTRIES


50
LANGUAGES


310+
U.S. PREMIER HOST SITES 


400+
INTERNATIONAL HOST SITES 


7,000+
WCA MEMBER CHURCHES WORLDWIDE 


90+
DENOMINATIONS REPRESENTED


WCA  BY THE 
 NUMBERS


2014
WHO WE ARE
Founded in 1992, Willow Creek Association (WCA) exists to help 
Christians grow their leadership to maximize Kingdom impact. 
WCA is committed to a singular idea: that inspired, encouraged 
and equipped Christian leaders create thriving local churches that 
redeem their communities for Christ.


OUR CAUSE | A GLOBAL MISSION FOR A GLOBAL CHURCH 
WCA’s passion is to help leaders worldwide—men and women—
realize God’s vision for their lives, churches and communities. 
Through The Global Leadership Summit (TGLS), Partners and 
WCA Membership we create world-class leadership development 
experiences and resources to energize Christians and mobilize 
churches globally. 


TGLS | CENTERPIECE OF A LEADERSHIP MOVEMENT
The Global Leadership Summit is a two-day, world-class leadership 
event experienced by more than 260,000 leaders around the 
world, representing some15,000 churches. It’s telecast LIVE 
from Willow’s campus (near Chicago) every August to 375+  
Premier Host Sites. Throughout the fall, Summit events take 
place in an additional 500+ cities, 120 countries—and translated 
into 55 languages. 


BILL HYBELS


  “IF THERE WAS EVER A TIME 
 IN HUMAN HISTORY 
THAT WAS CRYING OUT FOR 
COURAGEOUS LEADERSHIP,  
THE TIME IS NOW.”  







SUMMIT VALUES | THE NON-NEGOTIABLES
World-Class, Accessible & Affordable: Getting better as a  
leader demands intentionality. Each Summit faculty member is 
carefully selected to deliver intellectually rigorous content in  
an environment that fosters vigorous thinking and dialogue.  
Hosted in 875+ cities worldwide, the Summit is both  
accessible and affordable, facilitating large team participation.  


A Culture of Leadership: Everybody has influence and the 
potential to spark positive change. A culture of Christ-centered 
leadership can change individual lives, churches, businesses, 
government, schools and homes. For many leaders, the Summit 
is the most leadership-infusing annual experience they use to 
build into their entire congregation. 


Unapologetically Christ-Centered: From the very beginning,  
the primary target of the Summit has been church-focused. 
Increasingly the Summit attracts Christian leaders from every 
walk of life. Still, the leadership core in a local church remains 
the focal point. A culture of Christ-centered leadership can 
change an entire church, a community…even the world! 


Local Ownership, Global Reach: Our host sites and local church 
leaders are uniquely equipped to reflect Christ to the communities 
they serve. Whether in a suburb of Los Angeles or a village in 
Vietnam, local leaders are challenged to elevate their intensity  
of leadership and adapt the learnings within their cultural context. 


REGISTER NOW


willowcreek.com/summit | 800-570-9812







 


What Does it Take to Be  


a Summit Partner? 


 
  


 
 
 
 


Share the leadership development experience of the Summit  
to churches/organizations in your region. 


Imagine what God could do… 
 
 
Responsibilities of a Partner Church/Organization:  
 


 


                                                                                                                                      


 
    Select a Key Contact to oversee your 
    Summit Partner Program. 


 


    Commit to bring 10-15% of your adult 
    population to the Summit August 6-7, 2015.   


 


    Work with your Host Site Promotional 
    Strategist to develop a strategic plan that 
    invites leaders from your region. 


     
    Influence at least three other organizations  
    to attend the Summit. 
 


 
    Actively promote the Summit in meetings 
    and conversations. 
   
 


    Purchase the first 5 or 10 seats (depending 
    on your terms) right away to signify your    
    commitment. 
 


In exchange for promoting the 
Summit, a Summit Partner is 
offered a discounted rate per 
person for their 
congregation/members. 


 
 $ 99 until 6/23/15 


$129 thru 8/6/15 
A priority code for this pricing will be  
provided once approved as a Summit Partner.  







TOP 10 OUTCOMES
RESEARCH METHODOLOGY: 3,743 total surveys were collected approximately 6-9 weeks after The Global Leadership Summit 2014. Some 1,952 repeat participants 
reported how previous Summit experiences had impacted their lives and organizations. This sample size produces a 3% error margin with a 99% confidence level that  
the results reflect the average outcomes for all TGLS 2014 participants. Each question was asked 2-3 ways to validate the precision of this self-reported data. Top 3  
and bottom 3 outliers were removed to calculate the most representative average participant responses below.


PARTICIPANT Outcomes


Improved work quality


Volunteered at church


Shared the Gospel


Increased job satisfaction


Gave $ to help community


Managed people better


Did not quit leading


Trained other leaders


Impacted community


Served the poor


Average


86%


13%


25%


87%


33%


81%


10%


65%


54%


33%


OUTCOME Explanation


86% of participants who applied new team-building skills learned at TGLS “Agree”  
or “Strongly Agree” that those skills have improved the quality of their work


13% of church leaders “volunteered for a new church leadership position” because  
of inspiration received at the Summit


25% of repeat participants reported “TGLS inspired [me] to share the Gospel in  
the past 2 years” with average results of 93 first-time commitments per participant


87% “Agree” or “Strongly Agree” that they found “a greater sense of significance  
and satisfaction from a new leadership position” the Summit inspired them to pursue


33% of repeat participants have “given to impact [the] community in the past 2 YEARS 
because of inspiration from TGLS” with the average amount given at $7,935


Of the 55% who report a superior attending the Summit in the past, 81% reported  
concrete ways their “supervisor or organization’s top leader improved because of TGLS”


10% of leaders who have attended multiple times say they “would have quit [their]  
leadership position without inspiration from Summit speakers to persevere”


65% of repeat participants teach others about leadership. They taught 68 other people  
on average in the past 2 years and plan to train another 41 people in the next year


54% cited concrete ways they served the poor (33%), comforted the hurting (20%),  
educated others (19%), helped youth (19%), and fought injustice (8%)


Of the 408 participants who reported a specific “number of people in poverty served,”  
they had contributed to organizations serving 775,214 people or 1,900 people on average












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Charles W. Oddo


Staff is requesting approval to continue recording county minutes as discussed and approved by the Board of Commissioners 
on August 1, 2012.


This issue was discussed by the Board on May 14, 2015, and only three members of the Board were in attendance at the meeting.  


Commissioner Ognio moved to continue having the minutes produced as they have been produced for the past two years.  


Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  The motion failed 2-1 with Chairman Oddo voting in opposition with Vice Chair Coston and 


Commissioner Barlow being absent from the meeting. 


Per procedure, any action taken by the Board is the result of at least three affirmative votes  Since the motion failed, staff is seeking 


further direction from the Board on how minutes should be produced beginning with May 28, 2015 Minutes and proceeding in a go-


forward basis. 


"Exhibit A" provides the Agenda Request and supporting documentation that was provided to and approved by the Board of 


Commissioners on August 1, 2012 that provides direction on the production of county minutes. 


Note: Three members of the Board of Commissioners constitute a quorum of the Board.  When only three Commissioners are present, 


any Board action requires an unanimous vote.


Staff is requesting approval to continue recording county minutes as discussed and approved by the Board of Commissioners on 
August 1, 2012.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, May 14, 2015


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, May 28, 2015 Old Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

Old Business #14







�


���������	



��� ���������	
�


���	��� �����	��		�
��
��������	


 


��������������	

���


���	������
��������������������������



����������������


�����	������������� �!������


 
�"��"�����


�


#��
�$ ���������������


��


	�������%������&���
�� ���!!����������
������
���������&���
�
��������������������'�!�����(��$�������


!�����'���!������)���!�
����
� ����
������)��
�������������
�������������&���
�
��������(��


��


*������������+���������������������)��'�������!!���������������
�!����

����+���!���!!��������&���
�


!��������������������������(��*��������!���� ��!����!��+���� ������������������� �!����������
�+�������������


 ��!�!�����'����!�����'����
������������������ �!�����������������
��  �����������������������������������


 ��!� �����������(�����+���� ����+���
��������������+����������)��������������,����!����������
���������


!�������������
�� �)����)���������������!�����'������)����)��������+������!�!+���(,��


��


$����'��!�����������������������'�
��*�+�����������&���
�����
�!����������������!����������
�*�)������-������


����&���
���������)������������
���������������  ���'��
��'�!�����(���


��


*�)�������)��������������!����'��������������������+.����������� ���(�


��


����-�(�


��


Charles W. Oddo�


Chairman 
 
Fayette County Board of Commissioners, Post 4 
140 Stonewall Avenue West - Suite 100 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 
 
coddo@fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
Sent by Charles W. Oddo. This message (including any attachments) contains information confidential for the intended recipient only.�







COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Floyd Jones, County Clerk


Discussion by the County Clerk concerning the production of the County's minutes.


Fayette County Ordinance 2011-06 reads, in part:  The clerk of the board shall promptly record the minutes for each board meeting.  The 


minutes shall specify the names of commissioners present at the meeting, a description of each motion or other proposal made at the 


meeting, the name of the commissioner who proposed each motion, and a record of all votes.  It shall be presumed that a commissioner 


has voted in the affirmative unless the minutes show otherwise.  More detailed information may be included in the minutes at the request 


of the Board.  


 


Historically, Fayette County's minutes have been lengthy.  While they meet the minimum requirements imposed by both County 


Ordinance and the recently passed House Bill 397 (HB397), their production consumes staff's time and efficiency, may unintentionally 


open up bias or interpretation, and provide little benefit in return.  


 


Based on HB 397, Ordinance 2011-06, and the County's current practice of producing minutes, staff will bring to the Board 


recommendations on how to continue abiding by legal requirements while increasing the ability to efficiently produce minutes. 


No action is required.  Staff is seeking either consensus or direction concerning the production of minutes.  


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


New BusinessWednesday, August 1, 2012


Exhibit AExhibit A







 


 


 


 


To:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


 


From:  Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 


 


Date:  July 23, 2012 


 


Subject: Board of Commissioners’ Minutes 


 


 


On April 17, 2012, Governor Nathan Deal signed House Bill 397 (HB 397) which, according to Attorney 


General Samuel Olens, made “significant improvements” to Georgia’s Open Meetings laws.  A portion of HB 


397, which pertains to minutes, reads as follows: 


 


The regular minutes of a meeting subject to this chapter shall be promptly recorded and such 


records shall be open to public inspection once approved as official by the agency or its 


committee, but in no case later than immediately following its next regular meeting; provided, 


however, that nothing contained in this chapter shall prohibit the earlier release of minutes, 


whether approved by the agency or not. Such minutes shall, at a minimum, include the names of 


the members present at the meeting, a description of each motion or other proposal made, the 


identity of the persons making and seconding the motion or other proposal, and a record of all 


votes. The name of each person voting for or against a proposal shall be recorded. It shall be 


presumed that the action taken was approved by each person in attendance unless the minutes 


reflect the name of the persons voting against the proposal or abstaining. (Emphasis mine) 


   


Fayette County has historically produced lengthy minutes.  Currently, a set of minutes is approximately 12 


pages in length.  (Five years ago, a typical set of minutes was about 25 pages long.) Coupled with other work 


responsibilities and deadlines, a 12-page set of extensive minutes can take approximately two to three days to 


produce. Even though these lengthy minutes are not verbatim, they are often a detailed account of what took 


place during the meeting; despite widespread agreement that minutes are not intended to intensively record 


meetings. The concerns associated with creating prolonged minutes are that: they unnecessarily consume staff’s 


time and efficiency, they require staff to determine what is essential to the discussion, they can cause staff to 


appear biased toward a person or position; they force staff to interpret between what was actually said versus 


what was intended to be said, and there is minimal return for the extra effort.   


 


 


 


 







2 


 
���������		
���������������������������������������������������������������� �����!!�"��#"#��������$���������%&������'�������%����


Over five years ago, Fayette County adopted practices to reduce the need to produce long minutes.  Those 


practices include: posting the Agenda with its supporting documentation to the County’s website well in 


advance of a meeting, posting an Action Agenda to the website within 48 hours after a meeting, and posting an 


audio version of the Action Agenda to the website which enables citizens and staff to click on their topic of 


interest and hear the recording.  Staff also maintains CDs of Master Recordings of virtually every Board 


meeting that has taken place since June 2007.  Copies of minutes and recordings can be reproduced upon 


request. 


 


Based on HB 397, the problems identified with creating lengthy minutes, and current practices, it is 


recommended that the following four procedures be agreed upon by the Board: 


 


1)  All County minutes should only include the names of members present at the meeting, a description of 


each motion or other proposal made, the identity of the persons making and seconding the motion or 


other proposal, and a record of all votes.  The name of each person voting for or against a proposal shall 


be recorded.  It will be presumed that the action taken was approved by each person in attendance unless 


the minutes reflect the name of the persons voting against the proposal or abstaining. 


 


2) Public Comments, Public Hearings, Administrator’s Reports, Attorney’s Reports, and Commissioner’s 


Reports will be recorded in the minutes to only report who spoke and their topic(s).    (Example: The 


County Administrator spoke about “a”; Mr. Wilson commented on “b”) 


 


3) Minutes will continue to make references to attachments such as supporting documents, agreements, 


contracts, maps, and all other similar materials. 


 


4) If a Commissioner asks for his or her statement to be included in the minutes, then a word-for-word, 


verbal transcript will be included in the minutes for the section of the Agenda where those comments 


occurred.  This will include not only the requesting Commissioner’s comments, but all comments given 


by any Commissioner, staff, or presenter relevant to that section of the meeting.  It is further 


recommended that this option be used as infrequently as possible so that the earlier recommendations 


are not inhibited. 


 


It is anticipated that these recommendations will conform to the requirements identified in HB 397 while 


removing the concerns associated with producing lengthy minutes. 


 


 











  


  


Section 2-56.  Minutes.  


(a)   The clerk of the board shall promptly record the minutes for each board meeting. The 


minutes shall specify the names of commissioners present at the meeting, a description of each 


motion or other proposal made at the meeting, the name of the commissioner who proposed each 


motion, the name of the commissioner who seconded each motion, and a record of all votes. It shall 


be presumed that a commissioner has voted in the affirmative unless the minutes show otherwise. 


More detailed information may be included in the minutes at the request of the board. 


   


   


12


Fayette County Ordinance 2011-06












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Recognition of Fayette County Road Department Assistant Director, Bradley Klinger, as recipient of the Team Player Award.


Commissioner David Barlow introduced the Team Player Award for Fayette County employees in December 2013.  The Team Player 


Award is designed to motivate, recognize, and reward outstanding performance and dedicated service as a representative of Fayette 


County.  Nominees are submitted by any Department Head of Fayette County at the consent of the employee's direct Department Head.  


All nominees should demonstrate above average performance in the following areas: 


 


1)  Constantly evaluating what his/her department is trying to achieve. 


2)  Flexible-  can change course as the situation dictates. 


3)  Understands what we all make mistakes and works together to correct mistakes  rather than expose them. 


4)  Understands that not all goals will be accomplished and can prioritize work efforts to accomplish as many achieveable goals as      


possible. 


5)  Maintains a positive attitude, REGARDLESS. 


6)  A consistent spirit of teamwork and cooperation modeled by respectful treatment of others. 


7)  Willingness to make commitments and keep promises in pursuit of team goals. 


8)  Demonstrates interest and concern for other team members and team objectives.


Recognition of Fayette County Road Department Assistant Director, Bradley Klinger, as recipient of the Team Player Award.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The Team Player Award is an initiative started and maintained by Commissioner David Barlow.


05/28/2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #3















This award is hereby awarded to 


Bradley Klinger


Fayette County Board of Commissioners


For your demonstration of cooperation with 
employees, for creating a positive work 


environment and for your consistent spirit of 
teamwork.


David Barlow, Commissioner












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


E-911 Communications Peggy R. Glaze, Interim Director


Ratification of the emergency replacement by Diversified Electronics, Inc. of the high-band antenna at E911 for the amount of $11,542.43 


and approval of the transfer of funds from E-911 project contingency for this purpose.


E-911 Communications is requesting replacement of the existing High-Band radio antenna at the radio tower located on Volunteer Way.  


The antenna is approximately 25 years old and Communications is experiencing degradation in receiving and transmitting over the High-


Band channel in the field and in the communications center- especially in rain.  The technicians believe there is corrosion and water in 


the cable that connects to the base radio. 


 


This frequency is the primary back-up means of communication for Fayette County Fire/EMS and Fayetteville Fire Department if there is 


total system failure with the 800Mhz Trunked System.  This is a completely separate means of communication from the Trunked radio 


system.  Many of the Sheriff’s vehicles have this frequency and can also communicate with the 911 Communications Center and the Fire 


Departments. 


 


This item is sole-sourced through Diversified Electronics.  The base radio connected to the antenna is under maintenance contract and if 


the installation of the antenna is not done properly and causes damage to the radio it will not be covered under the contract, therefore 


incurring more cost to repair.  Also, if the antenna and line are not properly installed and grounded, there is an increased risk for 


introduction of lightening surge and damage to not only the radio it is connected to but also any of the equipment in the site.


Ratification of the emergency replacement by Diversified Electronics, Inc. of the high-band antenna at E911 for the amount of $11,542.43 


and approval of the transfer of funds from E-911 project contingency for this purpose.


Funds for this equipment and work will be taken from E911 project contingency with an available balance of $89,834.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board he approved the emergency procurement for the high-band antenna during 


Administrator's Reports at the May 14, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.  During his report, Mr. Rapson informed this Board that 


this item would be placed on a future Agenda for formal Board approval.


May 28, 2015 Consent



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #7







 
 
 
To:   
 
From:   
 
Date:   
 
 
Subject: 
 
 
The high 
communi
Fire Depa
is deeme
record in 
 
The Purc
providers
 
The eme
describe
Board ap
 
Specifics 
 


C
C
B
 
 


Steve 


Ted L. 


May 2


EMER


band antenn
cations syste
rtment, and 
d to warrant a
your comme


hasing Depart
of the need


rgency purch
d in the minu
proval is nee


of the procur


ontract Num
ontract Not‐
udget: 


Sourc
Availa


Rapson 


Burgess 


8, 2015 


GENCY PURCH


a at E911 is im
m between E
the Sheriff’s O
an emergenc
nts to the Bo


tment prepar
ed antenna.  T


ase is being p
tes, and so th
ded for transf


ement are as


ber & Name: 
To‐Exceed Pri


e of Funds: 
ble Balance: 


HASE: Contra


mportant to t
E911 Commun
Office.  The a
y procureme
ard of Comm


red a contract
They will prov


laced on the 
at the Board 
fer of the fun


s follows: 


  970‐N, H
ce:  $11,542


E911 Pr
$89,834


act #970‐N, H


he health an
nications an
ntenna’s per
nt.  As you a
issioners on 


t with Diversi
vide and inst


agenda so t
of Commissio
ds from the 


High Band A
2.43 


oject Contin
4 as of 5/21/2


igh Band Ant


d safety of ci
d Fire / EMS S
formance is 
re aware, yo
May 14, 201


fied Electron
all it for a tot


he nature of t
oners can ra
E911 Fund C


ntenna Repla


gency 
2015 


enna Replace


tizens, becau
ervices, the C
deteriorating,
u made this a 
5. 


ics, Inc., who
al of $11,542


he emergenc
tify the contra
ontingency. 


cement 


ement 


se it is part of
City of Fayette
, and replacem
part of public


 are the sole 
.43. 


cy will be 
act.  In additio


f the 
eville 
ment 
c 


on, 












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Approval of staff's recommendation to reappoint Deputy Fire Chief Thomas F. Bartlett and Division Chief Steven G. Folden to the West 


Georgia Region IV Emergency Medical Services Council for a two-year term.


The position is a two-year appointment.  The positions join one representative from Peachtree City Fire and Rescue as voting members 


of this council.  The Region IV EMS Council is tasked with the oversight of the region EMS 911 zoning system.   


 


Membership to the Regional EMS Council is based upon the Director and/or the designee who represents that licensed Emergency 


Medical Services serving that jurisdiction. 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to reappoint Deputy Fire Chief Thomas F. Bartlett and Division Chief Steven G. Folden to the West 


Georgia Region IV Emergency Medical Services Council for a two-year term.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The Region IV EMS Council is a Professional Services Board and therefore appointments are not subject to Policy 100.19- Board 


Appointment Policy.


Thursday, May 28, 2015 Consent



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #8












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Recognition to the members of Team Fayette County Fire who participated in the American Lung Association's Fight for Air Climb.  


On April 18, 2015, twenty-five (25) Fayette County Firefighters, along with one Newton County Firefighter, teamed up to participate in the 


American Lung Association's 9th annual vertical challenge, stair climb, and race to the top of 191 Peachtree Tower in downtown Atlanta. 


 


The climb, which has become a favorite event among first responders, has continued to be successful in both raising awareness and 


funds in the Atlanta area. Team Fayette County Fire has hundreds of hours in both training and practice on-site at the 191 building. The 


team raised $10,602.53 for the American Lung Association. The team was recognized for the largest firefighter team to participate and 


was also the highest fund raising team.   


 


Ms. Brooke Cowen, Development Director with the American Lung Association in Georgia to join the Board of Commissioners and Chief 


Scarbrough for the presentation.  Ms. Cowen will also present a plaque to the team along with individual certificates to Philip MacArthur, 


Jason Peckham and Rachel Leonard. 


 


The names of each member of Team Fayette Fire is are provided in the supporting documentation.


Recognition to the members of Team Fayette County Fire who participated in the American Lung Association's Fight for Air Climb.  


Not Applicable


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, May 28, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #2
















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Public Hearing of Petition No. 1244-15, ALH DGT Investments, LLC, Owner, and Robert Rolader, Agent, request to rezone 77.45 acres 


from A- R to C-S to develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision with said property being located in Land Lots 223 & 


224 of the 4th District and fronting on Bernhard Road.   The Applicant has requested to withdraw the rezoning application.  


The Applicant has requested to withdraw the rezoning application.   


 


Staff recommends approval of the request to withdraw Rezoning Petition 1244-15.  


 


The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request to withdraw Rezoning Petition 1244-15.  


 


Arnold Martin made a motion to recommend approval of the request to withdraw Petition 1244-15.  Brian Haren seconded the motion.  


The motion passed 3-0.  Al Gilbert and Bob Simmons were absent.


Approval of the Applicant's request to withdraw Rezoning Petition No. 1244-15, ALH DGT Investments, LLC, Owner, and Robert Rolader, 


Agent, request to rezone 77.45 acres from A- R to C-S to develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision with said 


property being located in Land Lots 223 & 224 of the 4th District and fronting on Bernhard Road.   


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, May 28, 2015 Public Hearing



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #6
































COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Recreation Steve Rapson


Consideration of staff's request to establish a two-year corporation/businesses decal charge, at $1.00 per decal, which would allow 


corporations and businesses to use both Lake McIntosh Park and Lake Horton Park Monday through Friday. 


During the April 23, 2015 Board of Commission meeting, the Board voted to allow corporations and businesses in Fayette County to use 


the Lake McIntosh Park Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., through the use of a decal that they will purchase at cost from 


the county government, and for those who decide to come to the park on weekends from out-of-county to pay a $5.00 out-of-county fee, 


with corporations to be responsible for purchasing the decals at cost from the County and distributing the stickers to all the employees, 


with said decal being good for two years, and for the County to include the ability to purchase a $50.00 annual pass. 


 


Staff was asked to review consistency between the water parks and is seeking approval to charge the corporation/businesses decal at 


$1.00 per two-year decal, allowing corporation/businesses to use both Lake McIntosh Park and Lake Horton Park Monday through 


Friday. Out-of-county persons using the water parks during the week and on weekends would continue to pay a $5.00 out-of-county fee 


or have the option to purchase a $50.00 annual pass. 


 


This would provide consistency between the water parks and reduce the administrative burden from the approved April 23, 2015 action. 


Appropriate signage would be posted at both Lake McIntosh Park and Lake Horton Park to effect these suggested changes. 


Approval of staff's request to establish a two-year corporation/businesses decal charge, at $1.00 per decal, which would allow 


corporations and businesses to use both Lake McIntosh Park and Lake Horton Park Monday through Friday.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, April 23, 2015


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This approach provides consistency between the water parks; establishes a corporation/businesses decal charge and makes 


enforcement activity easier Monday through Friday. Non-Fayette County residents using the water parks would have the option to either 


pay a $5.00 out of county fee each day or have the option to purchase a $50.00 annual pass.


Thursday, May 28, 2015 Old Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

Old Business #13









